Public Document Pack

Scottish LOCAL REVIEW BODY

Borders
MONDAY, 19 OCTOBER, 2015
COUNCIL

A MEETING of the LOCAL REVIEW BODY will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNCIL
HEADQUARTERS, NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS, TD6 0SA on MONDAY, 19 OCTOBER, 2015 at
10.00 AM

J. J. WILKINSON,

Clerk to the Council,

12 October 2015

BUSINESS
1. Apologies for Absence.
2. Order of Business.
3. Declarations of Interest.
4. Consider request for review of refusal of planning consent in respect

of the installation of 16 No solar photovoltaic (PV) panels to roof at
Raebank, Chapel Street, Selkirk. 15/00616/FUL 15/00021/RREF

Copies of the following papers attached:-

(@) Notice of Review and accompanying papers (Pages 1 -
including: 38)
Decision Notice (Page 24)
Officer’s report (Page 20)
Comment from Community Council (Page 19)
(b)  Papers referred to in officer's report (Pages 39 -
46)
(c) List of policies (Pages 47 -
52)
5. Consider request for review of refusal of planning consent in respect

of external alterations and erection of 4 No flagpoles at West Grove,
Waverley Road, Melrose. 15/00504/FUL 15/00022/RREF

Copies of the following papers attached:-

(@) Notice of Review and accompanying papers (Pages 53 -
including: 122)
Decision Notice (Page 88)
Officer’s report (Page 82)

(b)  Consultations (Pages 123 -

126)




(c) Objections (Pages 127 -
130)
(d) List of Policies (Pages 131 -
134)
6. Any Other Items Previously Circulated
7. Any Other Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent
NOTES
1. Timings given above are only indicative and not intended to inhibit Members’
discussions.
2. Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any

item of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the
Minute of the meeting.

Membership of Committee:- Councillors R. Smith (Chairman), J. Brown (Vice-Chairman),
M. Ballantyne, J. Campbell, J. A. Fullarton, I. Gillespie, D. Moffat, S. Mountford and B. White

Please direct any enquiries to Fiona Walling 01835 826504
email fwalling@scotborders.gov.uk




Agenda Item 4a

S Chief EXGCUﬁVG Notice of Review
cottish
Borders 18 AUG 2015
COUNCIL , :
Democratic Services
NOTICE OF REVIEW

UNDER SECTION 43A(8) OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (AS AMENDEDY}IN
RESPECT OF DECISIONS ON LOCAL DEVELOPMENTS

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCHEMES OF DELEGATION AND LOCAL REVIEW PROCEDURE)
(SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (APPEALS) (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008

Use BLOCK CAPITALS if completing in manuscript

Applicant(s) Agent (if any)

Name [EETHIN CHAMBRGRA AN ] Name [ ]
Address [EAE Refl S 1R Address | ]
Postcodel_ T3 4B 1 Postcodel ]

Contact Telephone 1 ] Contact Telephone 1
Contact Telephone % Contact Telephone 2
Fax No Fax No

Mark this box to confirm all contact should be through
this representative:

es
* Do you agree 1o correspondence regarding your review being sent by e-mail? B D

Planning authority {SComish BseBS Commicyr, |

Planning authority's application reference number (18 7 00 €1 ¢ /F0C ]

Sito address  (FREBARNIC , ChATBC STARET, SELl T 4Lk l

Description of proposed lnd-\lla&rm a\‘ Solar ghote veltaic (FV) p.w.\_c, on e SE eston oille Gkl

development 'N. -vlllo-w\ 3 d@-&. I rurr amfl‘"l.'un Smlun 250w P‘W-
”mﬂm%L Nok on privisal alewdns n ~Fo v -

Date of application [ 20705714 ] Date of decision (f any) rl—'f,_!oa-/ =3 ]

PRgsed of 4



Netice of Review
Note. This notice must be served on the planning authority within three months of the date of the decision notice or
from the date of expiry of the period allowed for determining the application.

Nature of application
1.  Application for planning pemmnission (including househokier application) IZ/
Application for planning pemission in principle D

3. Further application (including development that has not yet commenced and where a time limit has beenD
imposed; renewal of planning permission; and/or modification, variation or removal of a planning

condition) D

4. Application for approval of matters specified in conditions

Reasons for seeking review
Refusal of application by appointed officer B/
2. Failure by appointed officer to determine the application within the period allowed for detenmination of D
the application
3. Conditions imposed on consent by appointed officer D
Review procedure

The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time
during the review process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine
the review. Further information may be required by one or a combination of procedures, such as: wiitten
submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or inspecting the land which is the subject of the
Teview case.

Please indicate what procedure {or combination of procedures) you think is most appropriate for the handiing of your
review. You may tick more than one box if you wish the review to be conducted by a combination of procedures.

1. Further written submissions E/
2. One or more hearing sessions B/

=

4  Assessment of review documents only, with no further procedure D

3. Site inspection

if you have marked box 1 or 2, please explain here which of the matters (as set out in your statement below) you
believe ought to be subject of that procedure, and why you consider further submissions or a hearing are necessary.
“THE (NTeRETATION OF AT CoNtt TuTes SUNALCEPTARLE Y, INACT or) TNE CoNsa R Alah

15 SUB3EcTivE. THE ARucAton) NESDS TolF SEP 1IN THE WNTEXT o THE sviRowhiNe sSpger,
AND THE PLECEOBNT SET By NARWAL OR & LARGTE AU By THE peoH Qidtal HasBatal DyeRLov
Site inspection

In the event that the Local Review Body decides to inspect the review site, in your opinion:
¥Yes No
1. Can the site be viewed entirely from public land?

2 Isit possible for the site to be accessed safely, and wilhout barriers to entry? IE’D

if there are reasons why you think the Local Review Body would be unable to undertake an unaccompanied sile
inspection, please explain here:

iRage Zor 4



Notice of Review
Statement

You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all matters
you consider require to be taken into account in determining your review. Note: you may not have a further
opportunity to add to your statement of review at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your
notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely on and wish the Local Review Body to
consider as part of your review.,

If the Local Review Body issues a notice requesting further information from any other person or body, you will have
a period of 14 days in which to comment on any additional matter which has been raised by that person or body.

State here the reasons for your notice of review and all matters you wish to raise. If necessary, this can be
continued or provided in full in a separate document. You may also submit additional documentation with this form.

YEASE SEF ATTAGHED DocumeNT

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the YEESI ‘Nzo/
determination on your application was made?

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising new material, why it was not raised with the
appointed officer before your application was determined and why you consider it should now be considered in your
review.

Page o
%ggeSoH



Notice of Review
List of documents and evidence

Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice
of review and intend to rely on in support of your review.

APPEAL STTEVENT

PHovoafAPHS OF PARISKH CHULLH AnD CHAPEL STREET

OREINAL AL CATION DOCUMENTS (NCLUDIN G FERSOMAL  STATEVEMT
MAP Of CovaefaJATION ALER

Town AND Copnrfy PLANNING  DOMESTIC. M 1LERogehaRNTION Scoriant) AmmEaoveny OfDEY. Jom

MiLcatioN ©A/00 3L5/FUL ~ FMfasH CHVECH ¢
NEwoPA Pol. CUTT, e AR PANEL PLANNWE AGPUIcAT, ) $LC-

Note. The planning authority will make a copy of the notice of review, the review documents and any notice of the
procedure of the review available for inspection at an office of the planning authority until such time as the review is
determined. It may also be available on the planning authority website.

Checklist

Please mark the appropriate boxes to confirm you have provided all supporting documents and evidence relevant to
your review:

[} Full completion of alt parts of this form
B/ Statement of your reasons for requiring a review
All documents, materials and evidence which you intend to rely on (e.g. plans and drawings or other

documents) which are now the subject of this review.

Note. Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewa! of planning permission or modification, variation
ar removal of a planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions,
it is advisable to provide the application reference number, approved plans and decision notice from that earlier
consent.

Declaration

| the applicant/agent [delete as appropriate] hereby serve notice on the planning asuthority to review the
application as set out on this form and in the supporting documents.

Signed Date |12/%/15 |

The Completed form should be returned to the Head of Corporate Administration, Scottish
Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St. Boswells TD6 0SA.

BAGE £or 4



Statement to accompany appeal against refusal of planning permission for instaliation of 16 solar
panels on the rear raot of Raebank, Chapel Street, Selkirk, TD7 4LB

Appilication reference: 15/00616/FUL

Applicant: Gethin Chamberlain, Raebank, Chapel Street, Selkirk, TD7 418,
Email: gethin.chamberlain@gmail.com

Telephone: 01750 213489 (h) or 07525 006350 (m)

The application is for the installation of of solar photovottaic (PV) panels on the SE elevation of the
existing dwelling. The array to be mounted on a 37 degree pitch slate roof and comprise sixteen
250w panels measuring 1.6m x t m each. The panels to be set in a tidy sequence on the rear of
the property which is not the principal elevation. Installation to follow the guidelines set out in the
Town & Country Planning Order (Scottand) for domestic micro-generation equipment,

This statement should be read in conjunction with the original personal statement accompanying
the application.

We are applying for a review of the refusal of planning permission on three grounds:

1) The original decision makes no reference to our contention - in our personal statement
accompanying the original application - that the approval of the siting of 40 PV panels on the B-
listed parish church, which also lies within the conservation area, sets a precedent for such
development.

2) The original decision relies on a subjective view of what constitutes an unacceptable impact

3) The decision does not give sufficient weight to national and local policies on the importance of
renewable energy and the merits of micro-generation schemes.

Having read through the officer’s full report, we note that it is accepted that there were no
objections to the application from neighbours; that there was no loss of amenity to those
neighbours; and that it is accepted that the rear elevation of the property is not the principal
elevation (the principal elevation faces north onto Ettrick Terrace and the property has an address
on that street of 34 Ettrick Terrace).

The adjudication states that the proposed panels would have an unacceptable impact on the
character and appearance of the Selkirk Conservation Area as a result of their prominent siting and
the scale of the development. The development is said to be contrary to policies Gl, BE4 and D4 of
the Consolidated Scottish Borders Local Plan 2011and it is argued that the benefits of the
development do not outweigh what are considered to be conflicts with the development plan.

We do not believe that the impact on the character and appearance of this part of the conservation
area justifies refusal. We wouid also argue that the scheme is compatible with policies on
renewable energy and micro-generation and that the benefits of the scheme outweigh the
subjective interpretation of the other policies.

Our starting point is application 09/00365/FUL, the application by Selkirk Parish Church approved
in May 2009 for the installation of 40 photovoltaic cells on the south facing roof.

The report of the officer recommends approval, noting that “the proposed installation of 40
photovoltaic cells on the south facing roof of Selkirk Parish Church is acceptabie, the development
is not considered to have a detrimental affect to the character of the conservation area or amenity
of neighbouring properties and complies with Structure Plan Policy 119, N18, N20 and Local Plan
Policies BE4, D4, G1, H2.is acceptiable, the development is not considered to have a detrimental
affect on the special architectural or historic quality of the building and would comply with Policies
BE1, DE4 of the Local Plan and Policies N17, 119 of the Structure Plan.”

Page 5



The report adds: “The church is set back from the fronting High Street aliowing for this
development to not appear over bearing against the traditional character of the surrounding area.”
It also notes: “The proposai is now considered to sit comfortable upon the slope appear visually
acceptable from the wider surrounding area.”

As a result the installation proceeded and the panels now generate a significant amount of
electricity for the church. They are, however, clearly visible from the High Street for half its length
and from various other viewpoints around the town. They are also visible from Chapel Street,
looking south across the Sainsbury’s car park. We would argue that the visual impact of 40 panels
on the slate roof of the church clearly visible from the High Street and at the very heart of the
conservation area must have a more significant impact on the character and appearance of the
conservation area than the erection of 16 panels on the rear roof of a private dwelling on a back
road.

The planning officer and the community councit both note that a reduced number of panels might
be acceptable in the case of this application: we would argue that the fact that the impact of the
church’s 40 panels was judged to be acceptable suggests that the same criteria should be applied
to this application and it should be approved.

The officer’s report suggests that the development would jar with the traditional appearance of the
house and its traditional neighbours. We would suggest that a site visit is necessary for the review
panel to make up their own minds on how traditional the streetscape is.

A plan of Selkirk from 1823 shows that Chape! Street was, at the time, known as Back Road. This
is very much the case today and its very varied architectural content should be considered when
assessing the impact of our proposed development on the conservation area.

Raebank was yet to be constructed, but the 2nd United Secession Church, for which it was built as
a manse shortly after the plan was drawn up, stood facing down into the valley. The church was
demolished in 1983 after falling into disuse. It was replaced with two modern buildings. Like
Raebarnk, they face down onto the A7 Ettrick Terrace. So too does the neighbouring property on
the eastern side, another manse.

We have addressed the nature of the streetscape in our original submission. We include a series
of photographs of the street to illustrate this point and simply contend that the reality - with its car
parks, derelict spaces and a significant number of modern properties - is far less clear-cut and
traditional than the report suggests. indeed further up the road towards the Sainsbury’s car park,
two modern properties with roofs facing onto Chapel Street both sport solar panels.

It is also worth noting that anyone approaching the property along Chapel Street is presented with
a view of the large side elevations of the hipped roof, both of which are of slate, and that the solar
panels would only be seen in side profile, reducing their impact signiticantly. Only from the council
offices opposite - 14-18 Chapel Street, home to the Scottish Borders Council Adult Protection Unit -
would they be fully visible. None of the near neighbours objected: indeed several have evinced
astonishment that anyone would contemplate rejecting such a progressive proposal.

The Scottish Govermment has set a target for all of Scotland’s electricity to be generated by
renewables by 2020, including from micro-generation, which includes domestic solar schemes.
Scottish Borders Council’s own policy on renewable energy development, Policy D4 in the 2011
consolidated local plan, states that “small scale or domestic renewable energy developments
including community schemes, single turbines and micro-scale photovoltaic/solar paneis will be
encouraged where they can be satisfactorily accommodated into their surroundings in accordance
with the protection of residential amenity and the historic and natural environment.”

We would argue that our application is entirely in line with the sentiments of these policies. As
acknowledged in the officer’s repon, there is no suggestion that the scheme would have a negative
impact on residential amenity. The officer clearly states that the panels would comply with policy
H2, which requires developments to be assessed on a range of criteria, including 2(iv) “the level of
visual impact”.

Despite this acknowledgement that the level of visual impact on the current environment is
acceptable, it appears that it is the perceived visuai impact of the panels on the historic
environment that has prompted refusal.

Page 6



Historic Scotland’s guidelines on micro-generation schemes in conservation areas -
Managing Change in the Historic Environment - states that “wherever possible, solar
micro-renewable developments should be installed on inconspicuous areas of a roof, such
as the inner slopes of a roof valley™. This option is not available to us. It is the rear
elevation which is correctly aligned in the south/southwesterly direction required for solar
generation. But Historic Scotland go on to say that “principal elevations should always be
avoided, and consideration given to the appearance of the development in views of the
building from higher vantage points. For the integrity of the building it is usually desirable
to mount photovoltaic modules as panels over existing slates, rather than replace historic
fabric with look-alike photovoltaic materials in the form of slates. This will also allow
straightforward replacement or upgrade in the future.”

We would argue that while we do not have an inner slope, the location and aspect of the
rear elevation of the house is relatively inconspicuous to anyone other than an observer
choosing to look out through the windows of the council’s own offices directly opposite. No
objection was received from those premises.

The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (Domestic
Microgeneration) (Scotland) Amendment Order 2009, Part 1A, Installation of domestic
microgeneration equipment, Class 6a, addresses the issue of the installation of solar
panels on domestic properties in a conservation area and sets out the criteria for refusal
and approval,

It states (in paragraph 5) that “development is not permitted by this class, in the case of
land within a conservation area or World Heritage Site, if the solar PV or solar thermal
equipment would be instailed on a wall or part of a roof which (a) forms the principal
elevation of the dwelling house or the building containing the fiat; and (b) is visible from a
road.

The wording makes clear that both conditions must be satisfied to require refusal of the
application. Simply being visible from a road is not enough.

The order goes on to state, in paragraph 6, that “development is permitted by this class,
subject to the foliowing conditions - (a) solar PV or solar thermal equipment must, so far as
reasonably practicable, be sited so as to minimise its effect on the amenity of the area;
and (b) solar PV or solar thermal equipment no longer needed for or capable of domestic
micro-generation must be removed as soon as reasonably practicabie.”

We would argue that it has already been acknowledged that there is no impact on the
amenity of the neighbours; that the aspect of the property and its location on a smail back
road minimise its impact on the conservation area; and that in any event, the granting of
permission for the 40 church panels has set a precedent for what does and does not
constitute an unacceptable impact on the amenity of the area.

To save repetition, we would advance the same arguments in relation to the council’s own
policies BE4 and Gi1, which will be available to the review panel and can be summarised
very broadly as requiring the development to be in keeping with its surroundings.

The reason given for the refusal is the prominence of the solar panels and the scale of the
development.

We have addressed the prominence already, though we would like to again stress that
anyone approaching the property along the street will see unadulterated slate roofing on
both the east and west roofs, which are substantial, and that the entire front elevation is
untouched. The officer’s report suggests that the panels would sit uncomfortably on the
hipped roof. He does not elaborate on why he feels the configuration would be
uncomfortable and it does not appear to be so from the plans we have submitted. They
would sit fiat in a neat array, creating a uniform surface identical to that seen on the roof of
the parish church,

Page 7



With regard to the scale of the project, we are constrained to a large extent by the
technical requirements of such a system. One suggestion in the report is that we reduce
the number of paneis, but this is hardly a viable proposition.

Sixteen panels are needed, facing south or south west, to provide the 4kW necessary 10
power a four-bedroom family home. A 4kW system is the industry standard: it would make
us virtually self-sufficient in electricity. A solar panel system is a long-term investment and
despite the savings on bills it will be several years before it starts to repay the investment.
We are prepared to bite that bullet, but a reduced number of panels would amount to a
token gesture that would still result in panels visible from the street while not seriously
reducing our reliance on fossil fuels.

The other suggestion advanced by the planning officer was that it might be possible to
conceal some panels behind the parapet wall. Again, a site visit is needed to appreciate
the impragcticality of this suggestion, but by way of a brief explanation, Raebank has a back
door which opens onto steps leading up to a gate onto Chapel Street. There is a small sunken
courtyard and a high wall extending 6ft above street level. If this suggestion was pursued, the
panels would be facing north and would in permanent shade. Given the requirement for direct
sunlight, this would not be a viable solution.

We hope this addresses the main objeclions to our application to the satistaction of the panel and
we would be happy to attend any hearing sessions or site visits to answer questions.

We are committed to doing what we can {0 preserve the best of the past while embracing the
possibilities for improvement pravided by technological advances such as solar panels. As the
panel will see if they do make a site visit, we have done everything we can to improve the energy
efficiency of the house while keeping a careful eye on externat appearances. Inside we have
quadrupied the insulation in the loft and installed the most energy efficient boiler we could find: but
we have also replaced old and rotting windows with like-for-like double glazed wooden sashes,
spent heavily on restoring the render and had the house repainted in traditional local colours.
Sometimes, though, there is a limit to what can be done without making some visible externat
changes, as the parish church also found when i wanted to embrace the benefits of solar power.
We hape you will consider our appeal with the same generosity of spirit that was shown to the
church and its rather grander scheme.

Gethin Chamberlain

Carolynn Shaw
12 August 2015

Page 8






LS 23490 de e
AN WS SR o _. _ Q&ﬂt&m upﬁ% a;.

‘M.M. 14 %d.:ﬂ éulﬂ.ﬂmwfii ..-.‘..

s&dtuo& :..Sm_cu ._.nm..; .F_pocm - . Sk e
— S A T al nmo_uua .3%3.4 i B0y IS QMHD g0 dive e Eﬁ&ht@&o NG .:.-ﬂmaeo




OtiavhL PetSovac STATE menT

When we moved into this house last year, we did so hoping to be able to live in as environmentally
friendly manner as possibie.
We had just moved back to Scotland from India, where we were based for six years, and where the
ever-present poliution and disregard for the environment had focused our minds on the subject. My
work as a foreign correspondent specialising in human rights and environmental investigations also
has a bearing on the matter. it is important for me to be able to demonstrate that § do not merely
criticise poor practice but that | take practical steps to set an example.
When we bought this house, which was built sometime in the 1820s, it had a low F rating on the
EPC certificate. We replaced the bailer with the most efficient model we could find, had the loft
properly insutated and paid a good deal of money to have double glazing panels inserted into the
original sashes to maintain the look of the house, even though most of the other houses in the
street, including the C-listed neighbouring building, have opted for the far cheaper (and in some
respects more efficient, albeit less sustainable) uPVC alternative. We have managed to raise the
EPC rating to a high D and with the additional of solar panels, as recommended in the original
EPC, we would be into the B's, a remarkable achievement for a house of this age.
This matters to us. We care about the environment. We don't want to be reliant on fossil fuels. We
have a young son and care about the world in which he must grow up. We would rather not be
contributing to increased poliution and all the harmful side effects that entails, a sentiment which
we note Is reflected in the Scottish Borders Council policy on air quality. We have converted the
iower section of the garden into an allotment and grow our own vegetables, to try to avoid buying
produce that clocks up thousands of air miles. We are doing everything possible io live a carbon
neutral lifestyle.
Solar power is a particularily attractive way of doing this, because both of us work from home and
so much of our electricity consumption comes during the hours of peak solar production.
Appliances such as the washing machine and electric oven could be powered by a solar array;
water, 100, can be heated by an immersion heater in the tank, enabling us to also cut our
deperdence on the gas boiler.
When we saw that the Selkirk parish church had an array of 40 paneis on the roof, clearly visible
from much of the High Street and several other points in town, we were encouraged to think that
we would also be allowed to take this progressive step despite being, like the church, within the
conservation area.
We understand the need to maintain the character of the area, but the addition of the panels to the
church roof has been widely accepted and appreciated and, from our point of view, is an
encouraging sign that environmental conservation can coexist with historical conservation.
Our house was once the manse for a church which was demolished some time ago, presumably
before the conservation area came into effect. In its place are two 1960s constructions, one a
bungalow, one a two storey house. Our house looks out onto these buildings from the front, which
faces onto Ettrick Terrace (the A7). It is on this side that the front door and entrance porch are
located. The main entrance gate opens onto Ettrick Terrace.
The rear of the property backs onto Chapel Street and is reached down a short flight of steps from
the back gate. Chapel Street itself is a back road running paraliel to the High Street. At one end is
the Sainsbury’s supermarket; at the other a car park and lock up garages. In between, there is a
modern building providing sheftered accommodation for the elderly. Adjoining this is an area of
waste land and an abandoned concrete construction, plus a brick and tin roof garage. Opposite
this is a more traditional dwelling with a wooden verandah extension on the front and the front root
broken up by two dormer windows. Beside that and set back slightly is a brick building with
corrugated sheet roof. Moving towards our house there are on one side of the road the two 60s
properties and opposite them a more traditional building. Beside that, and facing our property, is a
block of Scottish Borders Council offices, seemingly built from some sort of concrete blocks and
with an unconventionat mix of flat roof and tiles. 1t is fronted by a car park. On the other side of our
house is a similar property whose expanse of roof facing onto Chapel Street has also been broken
up by the addition of two dormer windows. Facing this are a couple of traditional construction
houses (one of which also sporis dormer windows), separated from the council offices by a wynd
containing garages and workshops.
Beyond this, heading towards the large supermarket car park at the rear of the supermarket (which
includes the unloading bay) and recycling bins, are a line of 60s or 70s houses, around which the
Page 11



conservation area swerves. One of these is fitted with solar panels facing onto the street. A car
park and the rear of the Catholic church make up the rest of the street scene. Our roof can be
seen mast clearly from the council offices but is also visible as you approach from the east end of
the street.

We would be grateful if you would take into consideration this streetscape when reaching your
decision: it is far from the uniform traditional streetscape which we understand a conservation area
might be intended to preserve.

If permission was to be granted to install panels fiat to the rear elevation, a large area of slate roof -
the entirety of the side and front elevations - would remain: we would only be using one quarter of
the available roof space.

The use of solar power would be the only departure on our part from maintaining the traditional
appearance of the house. We of course would argue that the panels do not detract from this in any
way, being simply a new material that was unavailable at the time of construction and that we are
simply replacing a large expanse of slate with a large expanse of solar panelling. But regardless of
this, it is our intention to continue to restore the house in keeping with the area and we will shortly
be stanting work on the exterior walls to repair the ageing render and to repaint it in colours in
keeping with the traditional Borders palette.

We are happy to discuss alternative suggestions for the distribution of the array, possibly making
partial use of the west facing side elevation, though we are restricted by the technical requirements
of the system and this would entail the removal of the redundant and leaking chimneys, as has
already been done on the opposite side of the house. We need, ideally, to be able to fit the full 16
panels to achieve enough generation capacity to make it economically and practically viable. This
means that the panels really need to be south-east to south west facing to maximise generation.
Were you minded to allow the removal of the chimney, it would be possible to arrange the panels in
ane single row at the base of the rear elevation and another single row at the base of the west
elevation, which would aflow a much greater area of the original slate to remain visibie. It is a more
expensive option and might require more expensive higher power panels to achieve it, but we are
committed to this project and would be prepared to dig deep to reach an acceptable compromise.
We would be gratefus if you would bear in mind these points when making your decision and permit
us to balance the need to conserve the built environment with the wider needs of environmental
conservation in the same way that the parish church has achieved within the conservation area.

Gethin Chambenriain

Carolynn Shaw
29 May 2015

Page 12



)

AN \ocs\aun g\f‘xﬁ.«
AR

I Scottish
Borders
COUNCH

Mewtown St Boswells Melrose TDE 0SA
Tel D1835 825251
Fax' (1835 825071

Email: isystemadmin@scotborders.gov.uk

Appiications cannol be validated until all necessary documentahon has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.
Thank you for completing this application form;
ONLINE REFERENCE 000121567-001

The ondine ref number is the unigue refarenca for your online form only. The memom:y will alfocate an Applicalion Number
when your form is vatidaled. Flaage quote this reference If you need 10 contact the P g Authority about this application

Description of Proposal

Plaase describe accurately the work proposed: * {Max 500 characters)

Installation of solar photovollaic (PV) panels on the SE elevation of the axisting dwelling. The amay will be mounted on a 37 degres
pitch siate roof and comprise siteen 250w pansls measunng 1.6m x Tm esch, The panels wilt be sel in a tidy sequance on the rear
of the property which is not principal elevation, installaiion will foliow the guidelines sat out In he Town & Country Planning Order
(Scotiand) for domestic microgenaration equipment

Has the work already besn starled andior completed? *

E No [] Yas - Started D Yeos - Completed

Applicant or Agent Details

Ateyouanapplicant,wanagenl?'(Anagemismarchitactmnsuﬂamormmemacung D Applicant Agent

on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application)

~3I RN IR e

Page 13 Page 1t of 5




Agent Details

Piease enter Agent detajls
Company/Organisation:
Ref. Number:

First Name: *

Last Name: *

Telephone Number *
Exiension Number:
Mobile Number:

Fax Number:

Email Address: *

Safe & Protect Ltd
Building Name
Bonna Builging Number:
Lee Roberison Address 1 (Strest): *
01896753730 Address 2-
Town/City: *
Country: *
Postoade: *
info@safeandprotectiid co.uk

Iz the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

individual L] Orgamisation/Corporats entity

:g;'lpusl enter & Building Name or Number, or

§-10

Bridge Place

Galashiels

UK

TD1 18N

Applicant Details

Please enler Applicant details
Tite. *

Other Title:

First Nama: *

Last Name: *
Company/Organisation;
Telaphorie Number.
Extension Number:

Mobile Number:

Fax Number:

Email Address:

Mr

Bufiding Name:

Gethin

Buliding Number:

Chambaeriain

Addrass 1 {Streat): =

Addrass 2.

Town/City: *

Country: *

Postoode: *

You must enter a Bullding Name or Number, or
both:*

Raebank

Chapel Sireel

Selkirk

Scolland

TOT 4LB

Page 14

Page 265



Site Address Details

Pianning Authority: Scottish Borders Council

Full postal address of the site {including postcode where availabie):

Address 1: RAEBANK Addrass 5.

Address 2: CHAPEL STREET Town/Cily/Seitiement: SELKIRK
Address 3: Post Code: TO7? 4LB
Address 4:

Please identity/describe the locabon of the site or sites.

Northing 628654 Easting 347014
Pre-Application Discussion

Have you discussed your proposal with the planning authority? * m Yes D No

Pre-Application Discussion Details
it what format was the feedback given? *

{A Meeting ] Tetephone [ ] tetter [ Emai

Please provide a d of the feedback you wera given and the name of the officer who provided this feedback. If a processing
agreement {nofe 1} is currentiy in place or f you are curently discussing a procossi agreement with the planning authotity, plecse
provide details of this. {This will help the o deal with this application more ﬁﬂmnuy.) * {Manx 500 characiers)}

Site visit carried out by Andraw Evens and briaf email with Cardos Clarks. Both noted that it would ba unfikely that consent would be
granted for 16 panels bul the properly owner would like {0 pursue with an application and thus appeal if neccessary.

Titte Ptaaze Selact Ona Other titte:;

First Narme. Last Name.
Comespondence Referance Date {dd/mmiyyyy)
Number.

Note 1. A proceasing agreement invoives sotting out the key stages involved in determining a planning application, identifying what
Information is required and from whom and setting timescalés for the delivery of various stagaspcf lhangrocnss. fyina

Trees

Are therg any trees on or adjacent to the application sie? *

DYmmNo

If Yes, please mark on your drawings any trees, known protected irees and ther can ad close to the proposal site and indicate
if any are to be cui back or felled 2 R 7

Page 30f§

Page 15



Access and Parking

Are you proposing 8 new or altered vehicle access o or from a public road? * 7 ves (A No

if Yes please describe and show on your drawings the position of any existing, aliered or new access points. highfighting the changes
you propose to make, You should also show axisling foolpaths and note if there will be any impact on these.

Planning Service Employee/Elected Member Interest

i3 the appitcant, or the ap) nt's spousalpariner, either a member of staff within the pianning service of an ;
elacted member of the plapr?nciang authority? * .- 1 ves No

Certificates and Notices

CERTIFICATE AND NOTICE UNDER REGULATION 15 - TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING {DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
PROCEDURE) {SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2013

One Cenrtificate must be compleled and submitted a with this application form. This is most ususlly Certificate A, Form 1,
Ceriificate B, Certificate C or Cerlificate £. — ity

Are youflhe applicant the sole owner of ALL the land 7 - Yes D No
Is any of the land part of an agricullural hoiding? * D Yes [3 No
Certificate Required

The following Land Dwasrship Certificate is required fa complete this section of the proposal:

Certificate A

Land Ownership Certificate

Centificate and Notice under Regutation 15 of the Town and Country Planning {Development Management Procagure) {Scotfand)
Regulations 2013

Centificata A

| haretyy certify that -

{1} - No person pthar than iiihe spphcant was an owner (Any person who, in respect of any part of the land, is the owner or & the
lessae under a lease thereof of which not less then 7 years remain unexpired.) of any part of trnaylgnd {o which the application rafates
at the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the date of the sccompanying application.

{2) - None of the land 1o which thw applcation relstes constitutes or forms part of an agriculfural holding.

Signad, Donna Lee Roberison
On behalf of: Mr Gethin Chamberiain
Date: 28/05/2015

I7] Piease tick here to certily (his Certificate. *

Page 16 Fiemtiors




| Checklist - Application for Householder Application

Piease iake 3 few moments to compiete ihe following checklist in order to ensure that t’:gnu hiave provided ali the necessary information
in support of your application. Faiture (o submit sufficient information with your apphicali
invalid The planning authority will not slan processing your application until it 1s valid.

may result i your application being deemad

1} Have you provided 2 wrilten descripbon of the development to which o relates?. * @ ves | No
[ S

bj Have you provided the postal address ol the fand io which the developrment relates, o if the fand in question Dq ves | 1 Ne
Y.4 [—

ras no postal sédress. a daseripiion of the focation of the land? *

¢} Hzve vou previded the name and address of the apphicant and, where an agent is acling on bahalf of the 1.?.. ves | Mo
| —

apelicant, the name and sddress of that agent.?*

d) Have vou provided & tocation plan sufficient 1o ider}iify the land to whicn it velates showing the situakion of the
land in redation i the locality snd in particular irt relation to neighbouring fand? *. This shoutd hava a north point
and he drawn % an identified scale

....l
H
d
i

&

2} Have vou prowided a cerlificats of ownership? *

it Have you provided the fee payable upder the Fees Reguistions? * Yes

WY

-

E}

g} Have you provided any other plans ss necassary? ”

Conlinued on the next page

Yes i ! No

Yes S Mo
L1 No

Yes::}hlo

A zopy of other plans and drawings or inlormation necessary to describe the proposals
{two st be setected) *

You san altach ihess elocironic documeants later in the process.

C] Exiating and propozad slevations.

i} Existng and Proposed floer plans

E] Lross sestions,

{7 site tayout pleniBlock plans Gindluding access).
f,Zi Reof sian,

E Photographs endior photomaniages

Aduitional Surveys ~ Tor example 8 tree survey or habital survey may be needed. & some instances you - i
may nead 1o submit a survey aboul the structural condiion of the existing house or cutbuildmg * u-] Yes b/ Mo

A Supporiing Statement — you may wish o provige additiona’ background information or Jjushification for your :.:Z] v, ;—]
g!:pomfs This oan be heiphl and you shouid provide this in a single siatement Tais can be combined with & es L] No
sigr: Statement if required. *

¥ou must submii a tee with your apphoation. Your application will not be atie 1o be validated unii the approphaie fee has been
racenved ov the planning authorily

t

Deciare - For Householder Application

1 the applicant/agent cerfily that this is an application for plansin nrissiin 28 desoribed in this form and the accompanyin:
plansidrawings ana addltional mmrmaalion aee ) v

Dadiaration Name: Donng Lee Robertson
Deciaration Date 29/05/2015
Hubmission Date- 28052015

H

Payment Details

Onlme payment’ XMO100600545
Crealed: 2006/2015 17.27

"

Page 17

.

Fage5olS



’ 7
Roof layout \ e s
Roof 1
/
/
N\
g

‘;"“""‘“ S f::‘ B f‘\; H ‘a s —— - B -}

foo T
= ig-KXm (L) A S (Hs’
clactedian 1§ Seatta Lo

v PANELY ¢
- 'W\ (‘\ * iLw\ H\) [{Yﬂ"ﬁl»\d)

- ik Pﬂuu& WA L’\La\}

Page 18




15/00616/FUL Installation of 16 solar photovoltaic panels to roof, at Raebank, Chape] Street,
Selkirk TD7 4LB

“The Royal Burgh of Selkirk and District Community Council at its meeting of 15 June 2015
discussed this application and suggests approval in principle but only with a reduced number of
solar photovoltaic panels, to lessen the visual impact of the proposal — to the benefit of the

Conservation Area and visuai impact upon future improvements to the area which are hoped to be
part of the current CARS Initiative.”

lan King

Signed: ian King (Vice Chairman and Planning Spokesperson)

Royal Burgh of SELKIRK and DISTRICT COMMUNITY COUNCIL

Page 19



TTIS RDERS NCIL

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO
VICE DI R T Vi
IR T T L

REF : 15/00616/FUL
APPLICANT : Mr Gethin Chamberiain
AGENT : Safe & Protect Ltd
DEVELOPMENT : Instattation of 18 No solar photovoltaic (PV) panels to roof
LOCATION: Raebank

Chapel Street

Selkirk

Scottish Borders

TD7 4LB
TYPE : FUL Application
REASON FOR DELAY:

DRAWING NUMBERS:

Plan Ref Plan Type Pian Status
OS EXTRACT Location Pian Refused
ROOF LAYOUT Planning Layout Refused
SOLAR PANEL Brochures Refused
AS EXISTING Photos Refused

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

COMMUNITY COUNCIL: Suggests approval in principle but only with a reduced number of solar
photovoltaic panels, to lessen the visual impact of the proposal - to the benefit of the Conservation
Area and visual impact upon future improvements to the area which are hoped to be part of the current
CARS Initiative.

PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS
This application was publicised by means of a site notice, a notice in the Southem Reporter, a notice
on the national planning notification website, and by means of the direct postal notification of 18

neighbouring premises. No representations or objections were received from any neighbours or third
parties.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:

Consolidated Scottish Borders Local Plan 2011
G1, H2, BE4, D4

Other

- SPG on Renewable Energy
- Managing Change in the Historic Environment "Micro-Renewables", Historic Scotland

Page 20



Recommendation by - Andrew Evans (Planning Officer) on 13th July 2015

This householder application seeks planning permission for the instaltation of solar panels to the roof of this
detached dwelling in Sekkirk.

SITE

Raebank is a traditional detached dwelling with a slated roof. The principal frontage of the building is on to
the A7 / Eitrick Terrace. The building backs on to Chapel Street, and is accessed off of it. The property is not
listed. The property is located within the Selkirk Conservalion Area, as set out in the Consolidated Scottish
Borders Local Plan (2011). 20th century housing was constructed on neighbouring land. The property is _
bound by Chapel Street ta the South East, by the dwelling The Old Manse to the North East, by Ettrick
Terrace to the North West, and by the Dwellings at 19 Chapel Street and 32 Ettrick Terrace to the West.

The main "Front" facade of the house is on the A7 facing elevation. However, the house has a roof slope
facing Chapel Street to the rear which is readily visible from that elevation. Due to the setting of the house
into the sloping land, the roof slope on the "back” of the house on the Chapel Street site is sited quite low
relative 1o the street level on Chapel St.

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

It is proposed to install 16 solar panels, covering most of the Chapel Street facing roof slope. The panels
wouki be installed in three rows of diminishing widths, but the same overall height to each row.

POLICY PRINCIPLE

- Policy D4 of the 2011 Consolidated Scottish Borders Local Plan {CSBLP} on Renewable Energy
Development confirms support in principle for small scale and domestic renewable energy development,
including solar paneis, provided they can be satisfactorily accommodated in their surroundings in
accordance with the protection of residential amenity and the historic and naturaf environment.

- Policy BE4 of the CSBLP seeks to ensure development within Conservation Areas protects the characier
and appearance of the area.

These policies are given consideration below, together with the other applicable policies noted.
SUPPORTING STATEMENT

In support of the application, the applicant has lodged a detailed supporting staternent which can be viewed
in full on the Public Access website. This statement sets out the applicants desire to live in a more
environmentally friendly manner, and highlights that Chapel Street is a secondary street within the town
{running as it does parallel to the High St).

AMENITY

Policy H2 of the CSBLP seeks to protect residential amenRy. 1 am satisfied that none of the immediately
surrounding dwellings would suffer any adverse impact on amenity resulting from glare from the panels.
The location of the panels is such that they are not readily visible from the windows of the neighbouring
dwelling facing them to the south. | am satisfied that the proposed panels would comply with local plan
policy H2.

POLICY ON MICRORENEWABLE DEVELOPMENT

As noted above policy D4 of the CSBLP confirms suppost in principle for small scale and domestic
renewable energy development, including solar panels, provided they can be satisfactorily accommodated in
their surroundings in accordance with the protection of residential amenity and the historic and natural
environment. it is accepted that the panels weuld have no adverse impact on neighbouring amenity or on
the natural environment. it is in relation to the impact on the historic environment that concems arise with
these proposals.

Page 21



HERITAGE CONSIDERATIONS

Policy BE4 of the local plan, states that the development within or adjacent to a Conservation Area that
woukl have an unacceptable adverse impact on its character and appearance will be refused. All new

development must be located and designed to preserve or enhance the special architectural or historic
character of the Conservation Area.

The Councils Supplementary Planning Guidance on Renewable Energy states thai solar panels are kkely to
be less visible on valley roofs, double pitched roofs, roofs contained within parapets, low pitched roofs not
easily seen from the street, flat roofs and platformed roofs. Wherever possible solar panels should be flush
with the roof and mounted at the same angie as the roof to minimise contrast. Historic Scotland’s Managing
Change in the Historic Environment guidance in relation to Micro Renewables states that solar micro-
renewable developments should be installed on incoaspicuous areas of a roof. The guidance advises that
principal elevations should always be avoided, and consideration given to the appearance of the
development in views of the building from higher vantage points.

Furthermore, policy G1 of the CSBLP sets out quality standards for all new development. Whilst the
proposals would meet criteria 5 in so far as they involve provision of renewable energy technology, they
woulkd conflict with the other criteria of the policy - specifically, it would not be compatible with the character
of the surrounding area (Criteria 1), and the alterations would not be of a scale appropriate {o the existing
building {Criteria 12).

The proposed solar panels would be located on a highly prominent elevation of the building. The panels
would occupy the majorily of the roof slope facing Chapel Street.

In assessing the impact on the Conservation Area, | would acknowledge that modem housing exists nearby,
but in terms of Chapel Street Elevation on which this alteration would be visible, | would note that this is a
traditional building with mainly traditional neighbours, and the roof is relatively narrow and located close to
the road. The 16 panels woukl be on three rows occupying most of the roof and little of the slate of the roof
slope would remain visible. The arrangement proposed would sit uncomfortably on the hipped roof, and
would jar with the traditional character and appearance of the building and its relationship 1o its traditional
neighbours.

PRE APPLICATION ADVICE

The applicant previously advised that solar paneis for this scheme have already been purchased. A brief
pre-application meeting was held. The applicant was advised that the scale and siting of panels proposed
could not be supported, due to the inappropriate scale and siting of the panels, and the resultant adverse
impacts upon the Selkirk Conservation Area.

OTHER OBSERVATIONS
There would be potential for an alternate arangement of panels, perhaps concealed behind the parapet wall

from the roadside, or a much reduced arrangement on the roof, which it may be possible to support. The
proposals as submitted however cannot be supported for the reasons outlined.

REASON FOR DECISION :

The proposed panels would have an unacceptable impact upon the character and appearance of the Selkirk
Conservation Area as a result of their prominent siting and the scale of development. As such, the proposed
development is considered to be contrary to policies G1, BE4, and D4 of the Consolidated Scottish Borders

Local Plan 2011. The benefits of the development do not outweigh these conflicts with the development
plan

Recommendation: Refused

Page 22



1 The proposed panels would have an unacceptable impact upon the character and appearance of
the Selkirk Conservation Area as a result of their prominent siting and the scale of development. As
such, the proposed development is considered to be contrary to policies G1, BE4, and D4 of the
Consolidated Scottish Borders Local Plan 2011. The benefits of the development do not outweigh
these conflicts with the development plan

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other
assoclated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 23



33?-3%?—2 Regulatory Services

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

Town and Country Planning {Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

Application for Planning Permission Reference : 15/00616/FUL

To: Mr Gethin Chamberiain per Safe & Protect Ltd Per Donna Lee Robertson 8-10 Bridge Place
Galashiels Scottish Borders TD1 1SN

With reference to your application validated on 4th June 2015 for planning permission under the Town and
Country Planning {Scotland) Act 1997 for the following development :-

Proposai : Installation of 16 Neo solar photovoltaic (PV) panels to roof

at: Raebank Chapel Street Selkirk Scottish Borders TD7 4LB

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason{s) stated on the attached
schedule.

Dated 13th July 2015
Regulatory Services
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE

TDé 0SA

Service Director Regulatory Services

Visit http:’Ieplanning.scotborders.qov.ukionline—applications/
Page 24




Scottish

Borders Regulatory Services
APPLICATION REFERENCE : 15/00616/FUL
Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused:
Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
0OS EXTRACT Location Plan Refused
ROOCF LAYOUT Planning Layout Refused
SOLAR PANEL Brochures Refused
AS EXISTING Photos Refused
REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The proposed paneis would have an unacceptable impact upon the character and appearance of
the Selkirk Conservation Area as a result of their prominent siting and the scale of development. As
such, the proposed development is considered to be contrary to policies G1, BE4, and D4 of the
Consolidated Scottish Borders Local Plan 2011. The benefits of the development do not outweigh
these conflicts with the development plan

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT

if the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for or
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 43A
of the Town and Couniry Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 within three months from the date of this notice. The
notice of review should be addressed to Corporate Administration, Council Headquariers, Newtown St

Boswells, Melrose TDE QOSA.

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority
aor by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the fand claims that the Jand has become incapable of
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the
Planning Authority a purchase nolice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the
provisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Visit hitp:/leplanning scolborders gov uk/online-apolications!
Page 25




Scottish Borders Council
Conservation Area March 2012

Selkirk
Scale 1:4,000

5

T

o

LA
!u.. ,
=5 Conservation Area Boundary
4

. Development Boundary

HA

Page 26

e el
S
II_.J
=

T

A

For further information, including help reading this
document, please contact:

&

Plans and Research Team
; 1 1 | Planning and
. § + / Yo Ny : WL : Economic Development
7 ChisechF , , > ey DesF N4 NS AN Council Headquarters
HLcy £ ; ) 3 d )

ra " : ! - ’ ) Newtown St Boswells
....‘J..ﬂ...;.gﬂ\o:.-m—:ﬂ D.a ) . ¥ R g ¥ % b = 7 . iy - Melrose TDHG 03A

d

Tel: 01835 826511
Email: localplan@scotbordess,gov.uk

Diigciaimer. Scottish Borders Coundl uaes spalial information fram a
range of sourcea tn produce the mapping wntmined wilhin this

mbgkgq.rn mappingis for ifustrative purposes erly, The origing
sources ghould b d to confirm i ¥

© Crown copyright and datshase right 2010, All zights
mserved. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100023423




SCOTTISH STATUTORY INSTRUMENTS

2009 No. 34
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING

The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (Domestic Microgeneration) (Scotland)

Amendment Order 2009
Made - - - - Sth February 2009
Laid before the Scottish Parliament 6th February 2009
Coming into force - - 12th March 2009

The Scottish Ministers make the following Order, in exercisc of the powers conferred by
sections 30 and 31 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997(a) and al! other powers
enabling them to do so.

Citation and commencement

1. This Order may be cited as the Town and Country Planming (General Permitted Development)
{Domestic Microgeneration) (Scotland) Amendment Order 2009 and comes into force on
12th March 2009.

Ameadment of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development)
(Scotland) Order 1992

2.-—(1) The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (Scotland) Order
1992 (“the 1992 Ordexr”}(b) is amended in accordance with paragraph (2).

(2) The provisions in the Schedule to this Order are inserted after Part 1 (Development within
the curtilage of a dwellinghouse) of Schedule 1 to the 1992 Order.

STEWART STEVENSON
Authorised to sign by the Scottish Ministers
St Andrew’s House,
Edinburgh
5th February 2009

ta) 1997 c.8. The finctions of the Secretary of State were transferrad to the Scottish Ministers by virtue of scction 53 of the
Scotland Act 1978 {c.46).
{b) S.I. 1992/223, to which (here are amendments not relevani to this Order.

Page 27



SCHEDULE Article 2(2)

“PART 1A
INSTALLATION OF DOMESTIC MICROGENERATION EQUIPMENT

Class 6A—

(1) The installation, alteration or replacement of solar PV or solar thermal equipment on-
(2) a dwellinghouse or 2 building containing a flat; or
(b} 2building within the curtilage of a dwellinghouse.
{2) Development is not permitted by this class, in the case of solar PV or solar thecrmal
equipment installed on a wall or piiched roof of a dwellinghouse, if:

(a) any part of the solar PV or solar thermal equipment would protrude more than 200mm
beyond the external surface of the wall or the plane of the roof; or

{b) any part of the solar PV or solar thermal equipment would project higher than the highest
paint of the roof (excluding any chimney) on which the equipment is fixed,
(3) Development is not permitted by this class, in the case of a building containing a flat, if-

(a) the solar PV or solar thermal equipment would be installed on any part of the external
walls of the building; or

(b} in the case of solar PV or solar thermal equipment installed on a pitched roof, if the solar
PV or solar thermal equipment would--

(i} protrude more than 200mm beyond the plane of the roof;, or

(i} project higher than the highest point of the roof (excluding any chimney) on which
the equipment is fixed.

(4) Development is not permitted by this class, in the case of solar PV or solar thermal
equipment installed on a flat roof of a dwellinghouse or building containing a flat, if the solar PV
or solar thermal equipment would—

(a) be situated within | metre from the edge of the roof; or
(b) protrude moare than 1 meire above the planc of the roof.
(5) Development is not permitted by this class, in the case of land within a conservation area or

World Heritage Site, if the solar PV or solar thermal cquipment would be installed on a wall or
part of a roof which--

(a) forms the principal elevation of the dwellinghouse or the building containing the flat; and
(b) is visible from a road.

(6} Development is permitted by this class, subject to the following conditions-

(a) solar PV or solar thermal equipment must, so far as reasonably practicable, be sited so as
to minimisc its effect on the amenity of the area; and

(b} solar PV or solar thermal equipment no longer needed for or capable of domestic
microgeneration must be removed as soon as reasonably practicable,

Page 28



Class 6B

(1) The installatior, alteration or replacement of 2 free-standing solar within the curtilage
of a dwellinghouse.
(2) Development is not permitted by this class if—

(a) it would result in the presence within the curtilage of a dwellinghouse of more than one
free-standing solar;

(b) the surface area of the solar panels forming part of the free-standing solar would exceed
9 square metres;

(c) any part of the free-standing solar would exceed 4 metres in height; or
(d) the distance from the boundary of the curtilage of the dwellinghouse to the free-standing
solar would be less than the height of the free-standing solar.

(3) Development is not permitted by this class in the case of land within a conscrvation area or
World Heritage Site, if the frce-standing solar would be visible from a road.

(4) Development is not permitted by this class if the free standing solar would be within the
curtilage of a listed building,
(5) Development is permitted by this class, subject to the following conditions—

(a) the free-standing solar must, so far as reasonably practicable, be sited 50 as to minimise
its effect on the amenity of the area; and

(b) a free-standing solar no longer needed for or capable of domestic microgeneration must
be removed as soon as reasonably practicable.

Class 6C

(1) The installation, alteration or replacement of a flue, forming part of a biomass heating
system, on a dwellinghouse or building containing a flat,
(2) Development is not permitted by this class if -

(a) the height of the flue would protrude more than one metre above the highest pan of the
roof (excluding any chimmey) on which the flue is fixcd;

(b) in the case of land within a conservation areca or a World Heritage Sitc, the flue would be
installed on the principal elevation of the dwellinghouse or building containing a flat; or

(c) the flue would be within an Air Quality Management Area.

Class 6D

The installation, alteration or replacement of a ground source heat pump within the
curtilage of a dwellinghouse or building containing a flat,

Class 6E

The installation, alteration or replacement of a water source heat pump within the curtilage
of a dwellinghouse or building containing a flat.

Class 6F

(1) The installation, alteration or replacement of a flue, forming part of a combined heat
and power system, on a dwellinghouse or building containing a flat.

(2) Development is not permitted by this class if--

(a) the height of the flue would protrude more than 1 metre above the highest part of the roof
(excluding any chimney) on which the flue is fixed;

Page’29



(b} in the case of land within a conservation area or World Heritage Site, the fluc would be
installed on the principal elevation of the dwellinghouse, or building containing a flat; or

(¢) in the case of a combined heat and power system fuclied by biomass sources, the flue
would be within an Air Quality Management Arca.

Interpretation of Part 1A

For the purposes of Part 1A -

“Ajr Quality Management Area”™, has the meaning given in section 83(1) of the Environment
Act 1995(a);

“frec-standing solar™ means solar photo voltaics or solar thermal equipment which is not
installed on a building;

“microgencration” has the meaning given in section 82(6) of the Energy Act 2004(b) and
“domestic microgeneration” means the production of electricity or heat for domestic
consumption using microgencration equipment;

“golar PV means solar photovoltaics; and

“World Heritage Site” means land appearing on the World Heritage List kept under
article 11(2) of the 1972 UNESCO Convention for the Protection of the World Cultural and
Natural Heritage(c).”

() 1995¢.25.
{b) 2004 c.20.
(¢} See command paper 9424.

Page430



EXPLANATORY NOTE
(This note is not part of the Order)

This Order amends Schedule 1 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permiited
Development) (Scotland) Order 1992. Schedule | confers permitted development rights in respect
of certain development and where such rights apply, no specific application for planning
permission is needed. This Order extends permitted development rights to certain individual
microgeneration technologics.

Article 2(2) and the Schedule inserts a new Part IA into Schedule { of the 1992 Order. It
provides permitted development rights for the installation of specified types of microgeneration
equipment on or within the curtilage of dwcllinghouses or flats, subject to certain criteria. These
types of microgeneration equipment include: solar thermal and photo-voltaic panels; flues for
biomass systems; ground source heat pumps; water source heat pumps and flues for combined
heat and power devices.

A regulatory impact assessment has been prepared in relation to this Order and can be obtained
frce of charge from the Scottish Government Planning Directorate, Arca 2H, Victoria Quay,
Edinburgh, EH6 6QQ.

£ Crown Copyright 2009

Printed in the UK by The Stationery Office Limited under the authority and superintendence of Carol Tulle, the Queen's Printer
for Scotland.

Page’31



SCOTTISH STATUTORY INSTRUMENTS

2009 No. 34
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING

The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (Domestic Microgeneration) (Scotland)
Amendment Order 2009

£5.00

150

02109 19593

Page 32



REF : 09/00365/FUL

APPLICANT : Mr David Bethune
AGENT :
DEVELOPMENT : Installation of 42 photovoltaic cefs on the south facing roof
LOCATION: Selkirk Parish Church
High Street
Selkirk
Scottish Borders
TD7 44X
TYPE : FUL Application
REASON FOR DELAY:
DRAWING NUMBERS:
Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
AMENDED Elevations Approved
AMENDED Sections Approved

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT AND SUMMARY OF CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
The Royai Burgh of Selkirk and District Community Council: Offer no objection

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:

Structure Plan 2001 - 2018: N18, N20 , (19
Local Plan 2008: BE4, D4, G1, H2

Recommendation by - Scott Shearer (Planning Officer) on 28th May 2009

This application is seeking planning consent for the installation of photovoltaic modules upon the south
facing roof of the Selkirk Parish Church, this property is within the conservation area of Selkirk.

Originaily this application proposed the installation of 42 photovoltaic moduies measuring 21 x 2.6m
however this length of modules could not be positioned appropriately upon the roof slope creating anr
unbalanced appearance. Thus the application was amended to propose 40 modules measuring 20m in
length, allowing this development to be suitably positioned upon the centre of the roof slope, further a gap
0.3m gap between the modules and the triangular vents was created fo guard against damage. The church
is set back from the fronting High Street allowing for this development to not appear over bearing against the
traditional character of the surrounding area.

The community councit supported this application.
No abjections have been lodged and it is considered that this development will not facilitate and detrimental

effects in relation to neighbouring amenity.

Page 33



The adequate amendments have addressed concems regarding the positioning of the cells. The proposal is
now considered to sit comfortable upon the slope appear visually acceptable from the wider surounding
area.

REASONS FOR DECISION: The proposed installation of 40 photovoltaic cells on the south facing roof of
Selkirk Parish Church is acceptable, the development is not considered to have a detrimental affect to the
character of the conservation area or amenity of neighbouring properties and complies with Structure Plan
Policy 119, N18, N20 and Local Plan Policies BE4, D4, G1, H2.

Recommendation: Approved subject to conditions

1 The development hereby permitted shali be begun before the expiration of three years from the date
of this permission.
Reason: To comply with Section 58 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1897, as
amended by the Planning efc. (Scotland) Act 2008.

2 The development hereby approved shall be carried out wholly in accordance with the amended
plans
dated 15/05/2009 and 25/05/2009,
Reason: To safeguard the character and appearance of the Listed Building and ensure that the
development
is carried out as approved by the Planning Authority.

Page 34



REF : 05/00366/LBC

APPLICANT : Mr David Bethune
AGENT :
DEVELOPMENT : Installation of 42 photovoltaic modules on the south facing roof
LOCATION: Selkirk Parish Church
High Street
Selkirk
Scottish Borders
TD7 4JX
TYPE : LBC Application
REASON FOR DELAY:
DRAWING NUMBERS:
Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
AMENDED Elevations Approved
AMENDED Sections Approved

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT AND SUMMARY OF CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
The Royal Burgh of Selkirk and District Community Council: Offer no objection

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:
Structure Plan 2001 - 2018: N17, 119
Local Plan 2008: BE1, D4

Recommendation by, - Scoft Shearer (Planning Officer) on 28th May 2008

This application is seeking Listed Building Consent for the installation of phatovoltaic modules upon the
south facing roof of the B Listed Selkirk Parish Church, High Street, Selkirk.

The Heritage and Design Officer was content that the principle of this proposal would not detract from the
special character of the Listed building, however it was recommended that in order tc minimise the impact
upon the character and appearance of the structure that the module panel should be centred upon the
triangular roof vents and a greater gap should be left between these vents and the top of the panel. These
obsetvations led to an amendment, proposing 40 photovoltaic modules instead of 42, allowing the module
panel to be centred upon the roof slope. The modules have also been repositioned closer to the eaves,
allowing for a 0.3m gap to be left between the modules and the three triangular vents. This suitable
positioning has resulted in a balanced appearance which respects the integrity of the Listed building.

The community council also supported this application.

Page 35



The adeguate amendments are considered to have appropriately positioned the cells upon the roof slope to
enable the development to appear balanced and not have a detrimental effect upon the integrity and
appearance of the Listed Building. No objections have been received.

The application will require referral to Historic Scotland in the event consent is to be granted.

Reason for Decision: The proposed installation of 40 photovoltaic cells on the south facing roof of Selkirk
Parish Church is acceptable, the development is not considered to have a detrimental affect on the special
architectural or historic quality of the building and would comply with Policies BE1, DE4 of the Local Plan
and Policies N17, 119 of the Structure Plan.

Recommendation: Approved subject to conditions

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the date
of this permission.
Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 16 of the Town and Country Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas)(Scotland) Act 1997, as amended by the Planning etc. {Scotland)
Act 2006,

2 The development hereby approved shall be canied out wholly in accordance with the amended
plans dated 15/05/2009 and 25/05/2009.
Reason; To safeguard the character and appearance of the Listed Building and ensure that the
development is camried out as approved by the Planning Authority.

Page 36






Wi NESDAY, APRIL 1. 200%

David Knox

CHE RE 4.6 35 in Sl wald et
be Bopuig that nsors than ¢ aal i srnitige
dow s bt thea,

LR A VR T T £ A ST
DEFORS S TR TR PR A T e
pevarredd bttt ety By adur T

hoth wlber fopm te tnnadl A0 e
TIPS AR - S0 oead aof thee 8 by
ff.r R TP ST

11 gttt d 3 B st
Wiy Snmded tprnsngph s g G ge bt
T nare ke sl prartaly s TRy s
van & vmar o Ha gy faln

e yotmpates Thoe s Batbirse ron e bade g
The s Sy wall b s s 1 S0 s
Hengr Wi vrapdn Lhuee been ideneatyg e
LR A O RLENT I ICHVER S
the uppedsen e Kok Sesa o
arip ) b g ovar slagie Lo h
erthat brashilepgen annd Fogagems m Yool 1w
ol vy Soad A o el

oo enzsmated tat e 5D pe! o
Windhd teter wz fmetaannr P AWM gt BBk

- am

SR s o T

Page 38



Agenda Item 4b

RAEBANK, CHAPEL STREET, SELKIRK, TD7 4LB  *Jomm oo

Planning (Scotland) Acl
L_J Q Y 1987
| 2
2 & REFUSED
Sub Sta v

subject 10 the
requircments of the
associated Decision

Noficg.

Ettrick Lodge L2

>

&

WY
QR‘
{3 1 1w
/ e
/= Q? Noyer %4
:"\ ((’b

Information
|| Application Boundary ggg;‘;ig?
[] Land in Ownership Date: 29/5/2015

Scale 1:1250 (4Ha)
0 50m 100m

Illlililllllllll!llll

Due to OS licensing conditions, you/your agent may only use this map for official Planning purposes. If you wish to use
the map for other uses, you must first obtain a separate licence from OS.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved 100028305 2015

Page 39



Boollisn Boroers Counch
Town A Linuntey
Pu” I (Sootana: Act
1997
-

REFUSED -1
Roof layout \ BT
Roof 1
/
// .
J a

N
Sm
v
€ Am
< 13- §m S

oot
-13-%m (k) x Sm (H)
- oGudckion & St Tast

PV PANELS = _
(1) x Ebw (H) (proet)

- 1b {;)(,\N\S A %G\MQ

Page 40




STP250 - 20/Wd
STP245 - 20/Wd
STP240 - 20/Wd

250 Watt

Scottsh Borders Counal
Town And Country
Planning {Scolland) Act
1897

REFUSED

subject 10 the
raguiremants of the
associated Dacision
Nolice

% SUNTECH

POLYCRYSTALLINE SOLAR MODULE

Features

efficiency

reliablity

load tests

Certifications and standards:
WEC 61215, IEC 61730, conformity to CF

Trust Suntech to Deliver Reliable Performance Over Time

- World-class manufacturer of crystalline silicon photovoltaic modules

+ Unrivaled manufacturing capacity and world-class technology

* Rigerous quality control meeting the highest international standards:
1SO 2001: 2008, 1SO 14001: 2004 and ISO17025: 2005

» Regular independently checked production process from international

accredited institute/company

- Tested for harsh environments (salt mist, ammonia corrosion and sand
blowing testing: IEC 61701, DIN 50916:1985 T2, DIN EN 60068-2-68)***

industry-leading Warranty based on nominal power

Wit ot Peowes Output

" Please tefer 10 Suntech Standard Module Installation Manual for desails
** Please refer to Suntech Product Near-coast Installation Manual for details

Copynght 2013 Suntech Power

« 97%in the first year, thereafter, for

years two (2) through twenty-five
(25), 0.7% maximum decrease from
MODULE’s nominal power output
per year, ending with the 80.2%

in the 25th year after the defined

5 WARRANTY STARTING DATE ****
+ 10-year material and workmanship

warranty

Page 41

High module conversion

Module efficiency up to
15.4% achieved through
advanced cell technology and
manufacturing capabilities

Positive tolerance
Positive tolerance of up to
5% delivers higher outputs

Module certified to
withstand extreme wind
(3800 Pascal) and snow
loads (5400 Pascal) *

**PV Cycle only for EU market
*** Please refer to Suntech Product Warrar ty for detail

www.sintech-power.com

Extended wind and snow e

|
Excellent weak light |
performance :
Excellent performance |
under low light conditions {

\

\

Suntech current sorting
process

System output maximized by
reducing mismatch losses up
to 2% with modules sorted &
packaged by amperage

Withstanding harsh
environment

Reliable quality leads to 2
better sustainability even in
harsh environment like desert,
farm and coastline

CE ngee O ©

et

IEC-5TD-Wd-NO1.01-Rev 2013

Compact and Durable Frame
Design

Suntech’s new compact frame
design is light-weight and easier
to handle during installation.
The rigid and durable hollow
chamber guarantees the

same long-term and reliable
performance.

IP67 Rated Junction Box
Supports installations in
multiple orientations. High
reliable performance, low
resistance connectors ensure
maximum output for the
highest energy production.




Scollien HBordens Councal
Town Ard Counlry
Hianmng (Scotiand) Art
1997

STP250 - 20/Wd reruseo g SUNTECH

STP240 - 20/Wd

Electrical Characteristics

-

[ ewue e STC STP250-20/ | STP245-20/ | STP240-20/
h [ A wd | wd j wd
Orarage res, =f [
m Maximum Power at STC (Pmax) l 250W | 245w | 240 W
PRV 4 : \{ s Optimum Operating Voltage (Vmp) = 307V 05V | 302V
== . = i Optimum Operating Current (Imp) | 8.15A 804A ‘ 795A
> = | .
| Open Circuit Voltage (Voc) { 374V 37.3v ; 37.2V
| §
(Bac n\kew) Short Circuit Current (Isc) | B63A 8524 :\ 843 A
=t : Module Efficiency | 15.4% 151% | 148%
14 L||J 8 Operating Module Temperature | -40"C 1o +85°C
g ? i 3 Maximum System Voltage : 1000V DC (IEC)
L 1
it inF : g Maximum Series Fuse Rating : 20A
b e Power Tolerance \ 0/+5 %
ST hradiance 1000 W/m', nuxdule tempetature 15 °C, AMsT S
Barsl i Class AAA sobu sanuditon IEC 60904-5) wsedl puwet measuremerd untertainty i witha «4- 1%
= F NOCT STP250-20/ | STP245-20/ | STP240-20/
et wd wd
Section 8-B Y Maximum Power at NOCT (Pmax) 185W 1w 17sw
s ™~ Optimum Operating Voltage (Vmp) | 28.0V l 278V 276V
%- = rondvien) I\ i Optimum Operating Current (imp) | 659A | 651A  644A
s ﬁ ™~ Open Circuit Voltage (Voc) i 345V | 343v 340V
anal . JT | | : { S }
P Short Circuit Current (Isc) B T 6.86 A
' mm

NOCT. inadiance 800 W/m-. ambient lemperdlure 20 °C. AM= 15, wind speed | m/s
Best in Class AAA solar samulator (IEC 503049) used. power MassUTement UnCerTainty is within +/- 3%

C t-Voltage & P -Voltage C 245-20
Rt o g g Sl ) Temperature Characteristics

$ B

el eee e d Nominal Operating Cell Temperature (NOCT) | 45+2°C

i e it \Y - Temperature Coefficient of Pmax . 043 %/°C
g B et \\‘\ wE Temperature Coefficient of Voc . 0.33%/°C
E d o & W\ E Temperature Coefficient of Isc ' 0.067 %/°C
< ‘ = __/,_}477‘,;‘;:/'__,_\ \.\ \ B w0

: = — AT Mechanical Characteristics

s | . :
° Solar Cell Polycrystalline silicon 156 x 156 mm (6 inches)
L] 1] " " » n » » a0 1
" No. of Cells  60(6x10)

— W S WY W e Al Wy :mwwi Dimensions . 1640 x 992 x 35mm (64.6 x 39.1 x 1.4 inches)
Excellent petfoenance under weak Hght conditions: at an it adiation ntensty of 200 W Weight | 18.2 kgs {40.1 Ibs.)
e M e Front Glass 3.2 mm {0.13 inches) tempered glass

Frame Anodized aluminium alloy
Junction Box ~ IP67 rated (3 bypass diodes)
Dealer information s Output Cables TUV (2Pfg1169:2007)

4.0 mm’ (0.006 inches’), symmetrical lengths (-) 1000mm (39.4
inches) and (+) 1000 mm (39.4 inches)

Connectors | MC4 connectors

Packing Configuration

Container 20'GP 40'HC
Pieces per pallet 30 30
Pallets per container 6 28
Pieces per container 180

bt ption atotncemetit T specibostons m

wtt | ropet furs Bonug are possilabe aod do nat «

wwwisuntech-power.cem {EC-STD-Wd-NO1.01-Rev 2013

E-mail: sales@suntech-power.com

Page 42



| Scaullish Bovders Counal
Tawn And Counbry
Planning (Scolland) Act
1947

REFUSED

subjer 10 fhe
requirements of the
assoclaed Docision
Notice

Cnapst Bt

Page 43



Seattiah Bordera Council
1own And Counti
| Planmng {Scotland y Act
w7

REFUSED

subject to the
requirementsa of the
sssucisked Deviaion
Notice

Page 44



Page 45

Scottish Borders Council
Town And Country
Planning (Seotiand) Aat
1897

REFUSED

subject to the
reguiramenlts ol ihe
associated Deckion
Nolice




Page 46



Agenda Item 4c

List of Policies

Local Review Reference: 15/00021/RREF

Planning Application Reference: 15/00616/FUL

Development Proposal: Installation of 16no solar photovoltaic (PV) panels to
roof

Location: Raebank, Chapel Street, Selkirk

Applicant: Mr G Chamberlain

SESPlan

None applicable.

Consolidated Scottish Borders Local Plan 2011:

POLICY G1 - QUALITY STANDARDS FOR NEW DEVELOPMENT

All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with
sustainability principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to
integrate with its landscape surroundings. The standards which will apply to all
development are that:

1. It is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area,
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,

2. it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,

3 it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the

amenity or biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation
or replacements,

4. it creates developments with a sense of place, designed in sympathy with
Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need not exclude appropriate
contemporary and/or innovative design,

5. in terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer
has demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise
the efficient use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable
energy and resources and the incorporation of sustainable construction
techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance referred to
in Appendix D,

6. it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural
or screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings
and the wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some
cases agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are
undertaken at an early stage of development and that appropriate
arrangements are put in place for long term landscape/open space
maintenance,

7. it provides open space that wherever possible, links to existing open spaces
and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation
of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a
developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may
be appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,

8. it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the
development that will help integration with its surroundings,
9. it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport

Page 47



10.

11.
12.

13.

14.
15.

connections and provision for bus laybys, and new paths and cycleways,
linking where possible to the existing path network; Green Travel Plans will
be encouraged to support more sustainable travel patterns,

it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems where appropriate and
their after-care and maintenance,

it provides for recycling, re-using and composting waste where appropriate,
it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings
and, where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,
it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which
complement the highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an
extension or alteration, the existing building,

it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,

it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in
accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.

Developers may be required to provide design statements, design briefs or
landscape plans as appropriate.

POLICY H2 — PROTECTION OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or
proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and
character of these areas, any developments will be assessed against:

1.

2.

The principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space

that would be lost; and

The details of the development itself particularly in terms of:

(i) the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a
residential area,

(i) the impact of the proposed development on the existing and
surrounding properties particularly in terms of overlooking and loss of
privacy. These considerations apply especially in relation to garden
ground or ‘backland’ development,

(iii) the generation of traffic or noise,

(iv) the level of visual impact.

POLICY BE4 — CONSERVATION AREAS

Development within or adjacent to a Conservation Area that would have an
unacceptable adverse impact on its character and appearance will be refused.
All new development must be located and designed to preserve or enhance the
special architectural or historic character of the Conservation Area. This should
accord with the scale, proportions, alignment, density, materials, and boundary
treatment of nearby buildings, open spaces, vistas, gardens and landscapes.
Conservation Area consent, which is required for the demolition of an unlisted
building within a Conservation Area, will only be considered in the context of
appropriate proposals for redevelopment and will only be permitted where:

i) the building is incapable of reasonably beneficial use by virtue of its location,
physical form or state of disrepair, and

ii)the structural condition of the building is such that it cannot be adapted to
accommodate alterations or extensions without material loss to its character,
and

Page 48



i) the proposal will preserve or enhance the Conservation area, either
individually or as part of the  townscape.

In cases i) to iii) above, demolition will not be permitted to proceed until
acceptable alternative treatment of the site has been approved and a contract
for the replacement building or for an alternative means of treating the cleared
site has been agreed.

4.  Full consideration will be given to the guidance given in the Scottish Historic
Environment Policy (SHEP) in the assessment of any application relating to
development within a Conservation Area.

5.  The Council may require applications for full, as opposed to outline, consent. In
instances where outline applications are submitted, the Council will require a
‘Design Statement’ to be submitted at the same time, which should explain and
illustrate the design principles and design concepts of the proposals. Design
Statements will also be required for any applications for major alterations or
extensions, or for demolition and replacement.

POLICY D4 — RENEWABLE ENERGY DEVELOPMENT

The Council will support proposals for both large scale and community scale
renewable energy development including commercial wind farms, single or limited
scale wind turbines, biomass, hydropower, biofuel technology and solar power where
they can be accommodated without unacceptable impacts on the environment. The
siting and design of all renewable energy developments should take account of the
social, economic and environmental context.

Renewable energy developments will be approved provided that,

1.  there are no unacceptable adverse impacts on the natural heritage including
the water environment, landscape, biodiversity, built environment and
archaeological heritage, or that any adverse impacts can be satisfactorily
mitigated;

2. there are no unacceptable adverse impacts on recreation and tourism, including
access routes, or that any adverse impacts can be satisfactorily mitigated.

If there are judged to be significant adverse impacts that cannot be mitigated, the
development will only be approved if the Council is satisfied that the contribution to
wider economic and environmental benefits outweigh the potential damage to the
environment or to tourism and recreation.

Commercial Wind Farms

1.  Commercial wind farm development will normally be more acceptable in
locations within ‘preferred areas’ outwith environmental designations as set out
in Structure Plan Policy 119. As noted in the justification of the local plan policy
on Areas of Great Landscape Value (page 60), the Council proposes to carry
out a review of the whole Council area with a view to adding additional areas
which merit safeguarding under Policy EP2. The results of that review will also
be taken into account in assessing the suitability of locations for commercial
wind farms.

2.  Locations within large scale landscape settings defined as Upland type in the
Landscape Classification hierarchy (contained within the Borders Landscape
Assessment) will normally be more acceptable than other landscape character
types subject to detailed assessment of the fragility of the area to change.

Page 49



Locations where there is surrounding landform that minimises the external
visibility of the development, where there is no interference with prominent
skylines or where there is no conflict with sensitive habitats will be looked on
more favourably than other locations.

In assessing the landscape impacts of windfarm developments, particular
attention will be given to the effects on high sensitivity receptors including major
tourist routes and important landscape viewpoints.

In addition to the general provisions for assessment as set out in paragraph 2 of
this Policy, proposals for commercial wind farms will be assessed against the
following criteria and will be approved where the overall impact is judged
acceptable:

(i) Impact on landscape character and areas exhibiting remote qualities as
guided by expert advice and relevant research including the Scottish
Borders Landscape Assessment 1995;

(i) Views of the turbines and associated transmission lines, tracks, plant and
buildings from ‘sensitive receptors’ that include residential properties,
important landscape features, prominent landmarks, major tourist routes
and popular public viewpoints, including those outwith the Scottish
Borders boundary;

(iii)  Visual impact assessment will include cumulative impact, shadow flicker
and the potential for driver distraction, and take account of the distance of
the facility from receptors and screening. Decision-making will be guided
by expert advice and relevant research.

(iv) Generation of noise;

(v) Traffic generation, including access during construction;

(vi) Ecology and ornithology, particularly statutorily protected species and
habitats, species and habitats of conservation concern or species
vulnerable to wind farms by virtue of their behaviour. Assessment of
cumulative impacts on regional populations of birds will be required as
appropriate.

(vii) Interference with radio telecommunications and aviation;

(viii) Provisions for decommissioning, land restoration, after care and after use;

(ix) Cumulative impact of wind farm development, including developments in
adjoining local authority areas. Unacceptable cumulative impact may
restrict development potential in otherwise appropriate areas. In
assessing potential cumulative impact, account will be taken of the effect
of perceived visual impact.

Reference should be made to Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) and PAN 45

Renewable Energy Technologies (revised 2002) in respect of assessing visual

and other impacts of wind farm proposals, giving consideration to the size and

the number of proposed turbines, the position and number of receptors affected
and the distance of the receptors from the turbines.

Developers must demonstrate that they have considered options for minimising the
operational impact of the development including:

1.

2.

3.

Positioning of the wind farm in relation to landscape character, surrounding
landform, wind farms and power lines;

Positioning of the wind farm in relation to the biodiversity interest of the site and
surrounding area;

Siting and design of tracks and ancillary development;

Turbine positioning and separation from residential properties and radio
telecommunications;

Turbine specification and technical controls, including consideration of
predicted noise levels at specific properties closest to the wind farm at wind

Page 50



speeds corresponding to cut-in, full rated power and maximum operational wind
speed, along with background noise levels and wind speeds;

Colours and finishes;

Routeing and timing of construction traffic;

Road access and improvements, taking account of constraints posed by
wetland and upland habitats.

© N

Other Renewable Energy Development

Small scale or domestic renewable energy developments including community
schemes, single turbines and micro-scale photovoltaic/solar panels will be
encouraged where they can be satisfactorily accommodated into their surroundings
in accordance with the protection of residential amenity and the historic and natural
environment.

Renewable technologies that require a countryside location such as the development
of biofuels, short rotation coppice, ‘biomass’ or small scale hydro-power will be
assessed against the relevant environmental protection policies.

Waste to energy schemes involving human, farm and domestic waste will be
assessed against Policy Inf7 Waste Management Facilities.

Other Material Considerations

Supplementary Planning Guidance on Renewable Energy 2007
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Placemaking and Design 2010
Historic Scotland’s Managing Change in the Historic Environment “Micro
Renewables” 2010

Historic Scotland’s Micro-renewables in the Historic Environment 2014
Scottish Historic Environment Policy 2011

Scottish Planning Policy

Scottish Borders Proposed Local Development Plan 2013

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5a

FelshamPEr folvn o i FelshamPD

1 Western Terrace Edinburgh EH12 S0OF
T+44(0) 131 337 9640

Philip Neaves

Mocbile: 07446 897144

Phitip@ felshampd.co.uk
Head of Corporate Administration,
Scottish Borders Councit
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
Melrose

TD6 05A 2nd September 2015

Dear Sirs,

NOTICE OF REVIEW UNDER SECTION 43A(8) OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1947 {AS AMENDED]}IN
RESPECT OF DECISIONS ON LOCAL DEVELOPMENTS

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCHEMES OF DELEGATION AND LOCAL REVIEW PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008
THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING {APPEALS) {SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008

Appeal to Local Review Body

External alterations and erection of 4 No flagpoles

Waest Grove Waverley Road Melrose TD6 95L

Rural Renaissance Ltd 15/00504/FUL

Felsham Planning & Development Ltd are planning advisor to Rural Renaissance Ltd, We are instructed to submit an appeal to the Local
Review Body following the refusal of the above application on 14* July 2015, Accordingly, please find enclosed:

1. Notice of Review form
2. Appeal statements
3. Relevant papers {Documents 1-9)

Please de not hesitate to contact me ¥ you require any further information.

Yours faithfully

VAT Registration No 152 7435 14 Pag %mSnpSany Registration Number SC267721



. Notice of Review
~4Scottish
Borders
+ COUNCIL

NOTICE OF REVIEW

UNDER SECTION 43A(8) OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING {SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (AS AMENDED)IN
RESPECT OF DECISIONS ON LOCAL DEVELOPMENTS

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCHEMES OF DELEGATION AND LOCAL REVIEW PROCEDURE)
(SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (APPEALS) (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008

IMPORTANT: Failure to supply all the relevant information could invalidate your notice of review.

Use BLOCK CAPITALS if completing in manuscript

Applicant(s) Agent (if any)

Name [Rural Renaissance Limited | Name [Felsham Planning and Development |
Address |per agent ] Address [T Western Terrace, Edinburgh ]
Postcode | ] Postcode [EH12 5QF ]
Contact Telephone 1 Contact Telephone 107446 897144

Contact Telephone 2 _ Contact Telephone 210131 337 9640

Fax No Fax No

E-mail* | 1 E-mail* [phiip@felshampd.co.uk ]

Mark this box to confirm all contact should be through
this representative:

Yes No
* Do you agree to correspondence regarding your review being sent by e-mail? D
Planning autharity [Scottish Borders Council |
Planning authority's application reference number [15/00504/FLL i
Site address |west Grove Waverlsy Road Melrose TD6 BSL |
Description of proposed |External alterations and erection of 4 No flagpoles
development
Date of application [+8th May 2015 | Date of decision (if any) [14th July 2015 ]

Page 1 of 4
Page 54



Notice of Review
Note. This notice must be served on the pianning authority within three months of the date of the decision naotice or
from the date of expiry of the period allowed for detarmining the application.

Nature of application
1. Application for pianning pemmission (including householder application)
Application for planning petmission in principle [:I

Further application (indluding development that has not yet commenced and where a time limit has beenD
imposed; renewal of planning permission; and/or modification, variation or removal of a planning

condition) D

4.  Application for approval of matters specified in conditions

Reasons for seeking review

1. Refusal of application by appointed officer

2. Failure by appointed officer to determine the application within the period allowed for determination of D
the application

3. Conditions imposed on consent by appoinied officer D

Review procedure

The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure 1o be used to determine your review and may at any time
during the review process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine
the review. Further information may be required by one or a combination of procedures, such as: writlen
submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or inspecting the land which is the subject of the
review case.

Please indicate what procedure (or combination of procedures) you think is most appropriate for the handling of your
review. You may tick more than one box if you wish the review to be conducted by a combination of procedures.

1. Further written submissions D
2. One or more hearing sessions
v
3.  Site inspection

4  Assessment of review documents anly, with no further procedure l___l

If you have marked box 1 or 2, please explain here which of the matters (as set out in your statement below) you
believe ought to be subject of that procedure, and why you consider further submissions or a hearing are necessary:

Site inspection

In the event that the Local Review Body decides to inspect the review site, in your opinion:

Yes No
1,  Canthe site be viewed entirely from public land? D
2 lsitpossible for the site to be accessed safely, and without barriers to entry? D

If there are reasons why you think the Local Review Bady would be unable to undertake an unaccompanied site
inspection, please explain here:|j\ya

P 20f4
Page 55



Notice of Review
Statement

You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all matters
you consider require to be taken into account in determining your review. Note: you may not have a further
opportunity to add to your statement of review at a later date. lt is therefore essential that you submit with your
notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely on and wish the Local Review Body to
consider as part of your review.

i the Local Review Body issues a notice requesting further information from any other person or body, you will have
a period of 14 days in which to comment on any additional matter which has been raised by that person or body.

State here the reasons for your notice of review and all matters you wish to raise. If necessary, this can he
continued or provided in full in a separate document. You may also submit additional documentation with this form.

Please sec atached Appeal Statement and supporting material

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the F’EI NZD!
]

determination on your application was made?

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising new material, why it was not raised with the
appointed officer before your application was determined and why you consider it should now be considered in your
fEview

A

Page 30of 4
Page 56



Notice of Review
List of documents and evidence

Please provide a list of all supporting documents, matenals and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice
of review and intend to rely on in suppart of your review.

1.Planning Application Submission

2.Existing and Proposed Plan

3. Existing and Proposed Front Elevation

4. Existing and Proposed Side Elevation

5. Location Plan

|6. Planning Officer's Report

7. Decision Notice

8. Email Rural Renaissance to planning officer 7.7 15

9. Flags - History and Use August 2015 _ W
pense ofe e &P ST

V7

Note, The planning authority will make a copy of the notice of review, the review documents and any notice of the
procedure of the review available for inspection at an office of the planning authority until such time as the review is
determined. It may also be available on the planning authority website.

Checklist

Please mark the appropriate boxes to confirm you have provided all supporting decuments and evidence relevant to
your review:

Ful! completion of all parts of this form
Statemnent of your reasons for requiring a review

All documents, materials and evidence which you intend to rely on {(e.g. plans and drawings or other
documents) which are now the subject of this review.

Note. Whare the review relates {o a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or medification, variation
or removal of a planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions,
it is advisable to provide the application reference number, approved plans and decision nofice from that earlier

consent.

Declaration

| the applicant/ag

appfication as set

serve notice on the planning authority to review the
ng documents.

Signed

The Compileted form should be returned to the Head of Corporate Administration, Scottish
Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St. Boswells TD6 0SA.

P 57 4




FalshamPD

1 Western Terrace Edinburgh EH12 5QF
T+44 {0) 131 337 9640

Appeal Statement
External alterations and erection of 4 No flagpoles

West Grove Waverley Road Melrose TD6 95L
Rural Renalssance Ltd 15/00504/FUL

1.0 Introduction

Felsham Planning and Development is planning adviser to Rural Renaissance Ltd. We are instructed to submit an appeal following Scattish
Borders Council's decision to refuse our chent’s application for Externol olterations and erection of 4 No flagpoles using its delegated
pawers.

The site lies just outside of, but adjacent to, the Conservation Area in Melrose, and fronts Cross Avenue, on the main approach 1o the town
centre al Melrose from the north and west. The building was originally a Congregationalist Church.

The application was refusad on 14" July 2015 for the following reasons:

1. The proposed development is contrary to Adopted Local Plan policy 61 in that the erection of four flagpoles would not be
compatible with or respectful of the character of the surrounding area or neighbouring buildings

2 The proposel is contrary to Adopted Local Plon policy BE4 in that the erection of 4 flagpoles would have an unocceptably
adverse impact on the character ond oppeerance of the conservation areo as o consequence of the unusual character of this
aspect of the development; its siting immediately adjacent to the conservation area; and the high visibility of the site, which
would mean that the aforementioned impacts would go unmitigated

The Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act requires full disclosure of an appeal case at the outset. The reasons for refusal cannot be
added to or amended. Having regard to the above, we consider the main determining issues to be:

s Whether the proposed development is unusual and out of keeping in this location

s Whether thera would be an unacceptably adverse impact on the character and appearance of the conservation area

®  The policy test, both national and local, dealing with such impact

» The Council officer's assessment and reasoning and whether that is competent or reasenable. tn this respect it is important to
compare the Council officer's reasons and justification with the policy test set out in Scottish Planning Policy (SPP)

20 Planning Policy
The relevant development plan is the Consolidated Scottish Borders Local Plan 2011
Palicy BE4 - Conservation Areas Is criteria based policy. Its provisions are as foliows:

. Development within or adjacent to the conservation area should not have an adverse impact on its character and appearance

= Development must be located to preserve and enhante the special character of the conservation area. It should actord with
scale, proportion, density and alignment and boundary treatment of the conservation area

- Full consideration will be given to Scottish Historic Environment Policy (SHEP} when considering development in the
conservation area

Policy G1 - Quality Standards for New Development Is a eriteria based policy and requires that new development should, inter alia:

Be of a high quality and be designed 1o fit into the townscape

L Be compatible with the surrounding arez and neighbouring uses
. Be satisfactorily accommodated within the site

»  Abieto allow for contemporary or innovative design

. Incorporate hard and soft landscaping

VAT Registration No 152 7435 18720 €CBiany Registration Number SC287721




1 Western Terrace Edinburgh EH12 3QF
T +44 {0} 131 337 9640

L Provide appropriate boundary treatments
. Be of a scale, mass and density compatible with the surrounding area
s Colours, textures and materials should complement surrounding architecture

Policy G7 - Infill Development. This policy states that, inter alia, development should not detract from the establish land use or the
character and appearance of the surrounding area. Scale, materials, form and density should be appropriate to its surroundings.

Policy H2 - Protection of Residential Amenity states that development should be compatible with a residential area and that visual impact
will be a consideration.

Regard must also be had to the Scottish Government's statement on planning policy contained within SPP {Revised). Paragraph 137 states
that the planning system should:

Enable positive change in the historic environment which is informed by ¢ tleor understanding of the importonce of heritoge
affected....change should be sensitively to oveid or minimise adverse impacts on the fabric and setting of the asset and ensure
that its special characteristics are protected, conserved and enhanced

Paragraph 141 deals with listed buildings and conservation areas and states:

wthe materiols..scole and setting...of any development which will affect the setting of o listed building or conservation
greo...should be appropriete to the choracter ond oppearance of the building or conservation oreu...

Therefore, the recently published SPP has ciarified the policy test, which is development appropriate to the conservation area. The Local
Plan caontains a presumption in favour of alterations subject to no adverse impact on the character of the building and those alterations
being in keeping with the building. In our view, the nature of the proposed use should not impact on the character of the conservation
area.

The Scottish Histaric Environment Policy (SHEP) sets out Scottish Ministers’ policies, providing direction for Histaric Scotland and a policy
framework that informs the work of a wide range of public sector organisations. Paragraph 2.37 states that conservation areos are defined
as ‘areas of speciol orchitecturol or historic interest. Paragraph 2.44 states:

2.44, Once an area has been designoted, it becomes the duty (see Note 2,23} of the planning outhority and any other authority
concerned, including Scottish Ministers, to poy special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhencing the choracter and
appeorance of the area when exercising their powers under the plonning legisiotion and under Port | of the Historic Buildings
ond Ancient Monuments Act 1953.the choracter or appearance of which it is desirable to preserve or enhonce.

30 Basls for Determination of a Planning Application

The Town & Country Planning {Scotland) Act requires planning applications to be determined in accordznce with the Oevelopment Plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The same principles apply to an appeal. We set out below the basis for determining a
planning application and we then consider the reasons for refusal against the prescribed methodology.

The House of Lords in its judgement in the City of Edinburgh Council v Secretary of State for Scotland case 1998 {SLT120) ruled that if a
proposal accords with the Development Plan and no other material considerations indicate that it should be refused, ptanning permission
should be granted. It ruled that:

Although priority must be given to the Development Plon in determining o plonning opplication, there is built in flexibility
depending on the facts ond circumstances of each case.

This judgement sets out a clear appreach to determining a planning a2pplication and clarifies how the development should be used:

1 Identify any provisions of the Development Plan that are relevant io the decision.

2, Interpret them carefully locking at the aims and objectives of the plan as well as the detailed wording of policies.
3. Consider whether or not the proposal accords with the Development Plan.

4. ldentify and consider relevant material conslderations for and against the proposal.

VAT Registration No 152 7435 15 20 € CaShany Registration Number SC267721



FeishamiL

1 Western Terrace Edinburgh EH12 5QF
T+44 {0) 131 3379640

5. Assess whether these considerations warrant a departure from the Development Plan.

The determining authority must first consider whether the proposal accords with the development plan. It is important to consider not
anty the detailed wording of policy, but the aims and objectives of the policy maker. If a proposal is considered to accord with the
development plan, it follows that consent should be granted unless any site specific matters preciude consent.

The House of Lords has ruled that material considerations must satisfy two tests:

1. They must be planning considerations, in ather words, they must have censequences for the use and development
of land or the character of the use of the land; and

2. They must be material to the circumstances of the case and they must relate to the proposed development.

In assessing this propasal we believe that it is alse relevant to refer to have regard to Tesco Stores v. Dundee [2012] PTSR 983 case.
Paragraph 18 of the Dundee decision states:

The development plon is a corefully drofted pnd considered stotement of poficy, published in order to inform the public of
the opproach which will be followed by the planning authority in its decision moking unless there is good recson to depart
from it. It is intended to guide the behoviour of developers and the pianning puthority....the policies which it sets out are
designed to secure consistency and direction in the exercise of discretionary powers, whifst allowing o measure of flexibility
to be retained,

Paragraph 19 continues:

The development plon should be interpreted objectively in occordance with the language used...that is not to say that such
statements should be construed os if they are statutory or contractual provisions. Although a development plan has o legol
status and legel effects it is not analogous in its noture or purpose to a stotute or controct...development plans are full of
broad statements of policy many of which may be mutuelly irreconcilable, so thot in ¢ particulor case one must give way
to onother...mony of the provisions of the devefopment plon are fremed in longuage whose application to o given set of
focts requires the exercise of judgement. Such matters folf within the jurisdiction of planning authorities.

The Court ruled that the interpretation of planning policy is a matier of law but the application of planning policy is a matter of planning
judgment, therefore provided the planning autherity demonstrates a proper understanding of policy in its reasoning it can proceed as it
sees fit and weigh one palicy against another and/or give weight to factors other than policy in its determination.

4.0 Assessment
Having regard to the House of Lords methodology we note:

identify any provisions of the Development Plan that are relevant to the decision — the relevant policies are those identified in the
reasons for refusal, namely G1 and BE4. There is no objection on the grounds of infill development [G7) or residential amenity (H2}

Intarpret them carefully looking at the aims and objectives of the plan as well as the detailed wording of policles = the aims and
objectives of the development plan that are relevant ta this proposal are to maintain the character and appearance of the conservation
area; to protect residential amenity; and to ensure that the scale, design and materials that are used are appropriate to the area.

Consider whether or not the proposal accords with the Development Plan — There is ho objection to the externzl alterations. The
planning officer has noted:

The proposed external afterations to the building with respect to fepestration are an improvement upon the existing appearance
in helping to restore a vertical emphasis. If the frames ond detoiling were finished in dark colours as indicated, this would be
entirely beneficiol in terms of the character and appearance of the buliding.

The proposed reinstatement of o sun dial in place of o clock-foce raises no porticulor concerns in terms of what hos been
indicated, but the detoil would be oppropriately provided for prior opproval since some recessed detail appears to be indicated
but not described. This matter is copable of being addressed by planning condition.

Given the presence of render on the existing building, the proposed extension of this finish does not reise ony concerns in
principle.

VAT Registration No 152 7435 1k (€ tBGhany Registration Number $C267721



FelshamPD

1 wWestemn Terrace Edinburgh EH12 SGF
T+44(0) 131 337 9640

Therefore, these alterations must be judged to be in accordance with the development plan. It should also be noted that prior to Rural
Renaissance buying the site, NH5 had approached SBC Planners and discussed the possibility 10 demolishing the building for housing to
which SBC were agreeable in principle. Having regard to the Council's position regarding those discussions it can be deduced that the
Council considers that this building and its associated fixtures and Fittings do not have any significant meaning or purpose that contributes
1o the character and appearance of the conservation area.

The issue in this case relates to the alleged unacceptable impact on the character and appearance of the conservation area. In order to
consider this aspect in policy terms it 's necessary to consider why the planning officer thought the development should be refused and to
set his argument against wider policy considerations, in particular SHEP and $PP, which both anticipate that change is Inevitable in a
conservation area, SPP contains a presumption in favour of positive change to the built environment. The test is no adverse impact;
therefore, some change is anticipated.

The first weakness in the planning officer’s report is the lack of a description of the character and appearance of this conservation area
and an assessment of the qualities that led to the designation of the conservation area. Nowhere in his report is there any assessment of
why this part of Melrose was designated a conservation area and how four fiag poles will create an adverse impact on the characteristics
that led to designation. This is a significant weakness because without such assessment the planning officer’s argument is supposition and
merely an assertion to say that there will be harm. The planning officer has not said how and why that harm will arise or considered
whether it can be mitigatad,

The officer states:

in the event of approvol, these detoils could be appropriately regulcted by plonning condition, However, it is considered that the
impacts of the proposal, and the justification for the principle of flog poles being sited in this location ot ofl, require further
consideration.

He canfinues:

At least, it is not accepted that the Applicant has any formal or informal need, let alone any statutory requirement, that would,
and could, only oppropriately be met by the installation of flag pofes at the site for the purpose of flying tivic, national and/or
internationad flags.

This fails to recognise that except it exceptional circumstance need is not a planning matter. The officer does not like the flag poles and
believes that there is not a peed but lack of perceived need cannot be used to support an alleged unacceptable impact an the character
and appearance of the conservation area. The officer must focus on adverse impact not whether there is a need for the flag poles.
Without a proper character assessment of the conservation arez and an assessment of the impact of the flag poles on that character the
officer cannot demonstrate adverse impact.

The officer then states;

The erection of flagpoles in this context (particulariy if they were to be os high ond dominant os the photormontage indicates)
would be liable to give the development an ombivolent appearance, which would mare likely be reod as @ civic or institutional
context, rather than interpreted as denoting a private office development or conference centre.

The officer makes reference to ambivalent appearance but again does not show how this will have a harmful impact on the character and
appearance of the conservation area. How the building is perceived In operational terms and by the market it wishes to sell its services to
is @ matter for the owner and occupier not a planning matter. This is a formar church, Its past use would have involved signs a2nd naotice
beards outside. It would not have had a clear or uncluttered external appearance. Introducing Aagpoles will not block a previously
unobstructed view nor will it introduce clutter,

We attach as document 9 an article which sets out the history and use of flags. It is clear that flags, both in the past and now, have many
uses and are not restricted 1o civic and institutional use. Rural Renaissance wrote to the planning officer on 7™ July 2015 to address issues
raised in discussions, including the flying of flags. That submission noted:

1 Flying of flogs at West Grove compliments ond supports the positive ospects of SBC's recent decisian on flogs:-

All madern business prganisations must be inclusive ond flying flags helps us to promote this policy, the remaval of
these flags would inhibit this. SBC report supports this orgument.

VAT Registration No 152 7435 147 0@ Loy Regiswation Number sC287721



FelshamPD

1 Western Terrace Edinburgh EH12 5QF
T +44 {0) 131 337 9640

2. Promotes Melrose and reflects positively on its community:-

We have been flying fiags ot our Priorwood Offices for & number of years. Initially just recognising the national days
of countries within the UK, mare recently we have expanded this to include a number of countries oround the globe
thet we have a connection with. This has proved very popular.

Cur welcome for the visiting teams at this year's Melrose 75 was retweeted by North Western University {South
Africa) to their 10,600 followers. Not only did this promote Melrose and the Scottish Borders to on internoticnal
audience, but promoted discussion within the town — os do most of our flogs. Many people have told us they look to
the Crawford’s flags to see which nationol holiday it is! We shore photographs of our flags on Focebpok to enhance
their reach. Our posts hove o lorge, worfdwide gudience; one of our posts reached 3400 people, of which 1600
interacted with the post. This promotes the Borders — as a place 1o live, visit and o business.

Melrose is o cosmopolitan cormmunity with visitors and residents holfing from all across the globe, These flags
generate the welcoming and inclusive imoge.

The flogs ore removed and raised every day an never has there been an incident of vandolism. They do not interfere
with any views or pose any threot to the community, but contribute to the surroundings.

3. Flags are commonly found in conservation oreas, and are not limited to public or government buildings — banks,
hotels ond offices fly flags.
4. We will not fly advertising banners from these poles, and as you hove stated, this would require separate consemnt.

The planning officer has shown a lack of appreciation for the use of flags. In our submission flag poles in this location would rat be
inappropriate or unusual.

The officer finally moves towards a consideration of harmful impact when stating:

The unusualness of this eppearance would be highlighted further, firstly, by the prominence of this elevation within views from
the public reaim ut o junction and on o gatewsy approach to Melrose’s town centre, making this appeorance highly visible in
itself. Secondly, and with regard to setting, the application site is not in fact within a central location, but lies on the approach
to, rather than within, the town centre. its appearance within an outlying and predominantly residentiol areg would be
somewhat remarkable in fseff, and arguobly ot odds with its surroundings.

This fails to recognise that the approach to a town centre, certainly in the case of Melrose, is one of transition and a mix of uses. This is a
church not a residential building. The erection of flagpoles needs te be read in the context of signs and notice bopards that would have
previpusly been associated with the church. Flag poies are not vnusual and in our submission create a simplified less cluttered external
appearance to the building than would have been the case with the previous use.

The cfficer the states:

At least the oppearance of flags at this prominent, outlying location relative to the town centre, would arguobly be as likely, if
not more likely, to denote the setting of o hotel, rather than an office or conference centre, thereby further confusing, rather
thon clorlfying, the choracter of the development.

He has introduced subjective judgement in stating that the bullding could be interpreted asa hotel, Such 3 statement does not clarify how
there will be harmful impact. This is plainly a church. The subsequent change of use I an office and the proposed introduction of 4
flagpoles will not change that perception of church architecture. Churches are increasingfy subject to change of use and it is often difficult
to tell the use because of the impact of distinctive church architecture. The introduction of 4 flagpoles will not alter the perception of the
building in a negative way.

The officer then concludes:

The erection of flagpoles, even in isolation from the other proposals, would give the building, currenty in office use, o very
ambivalent charecter, and would oppear significantly out-of-place within, ond olso out-of-scaie with, their surroundings.....

For clarity, the objection here is to the principie of flagpoles being erected ot ofl, rather than to the specific height of flugpoles
that the supporting details indicate.

VAT Registration No 152 7435 14P ag eC@@any Registration Number 5C267721



EelshamPD

1 Western Terrace Edinburgh EH12 5QF

T+44 {0} 131 337 9640

Nowhere in this report is there consideration of the proposal against the criteria of policies G1 and BE4 against which it has been refused.

The officer clearly does not iike the flagpoles and has, in our submission, aliowed his awn subjective judgement to inform his assessment

rather than carrying out a systematic assessment against policy. In particular, the failure to assess the flag poles against the conservation
area character assessment is a significant weakness in the Council's argument. The officer has not demonstrated:

«  How or why an unacceptably harmful impact will arise

e  Given consideration to the need to maintain prominent buildings in a beneficial use

=« Assessed the flagpoles against the street furniture that would have been associated with the previous use

«  Given any weight to the fact that flagpoles can be an iconic and attractive feature or given weight to the fact that the display of
fiags is long associated with buildings of many different kinds and that such display Is not harmful or unusual

e  Given any thought to the fact that the flying of flags is not restricted to civic or institutional buildings but has a long histery of
private use

+  Given any consideration to the reasons for the fiag poles, set out in our client’s email 1o the officer (submitted with this appeal)
or the controls our client intends to use {again set out in that email)

Therefore, we consider that the proposal complies with the development plan.

Identify and consider relevant material considerations for and against the proposal — Despite the alleged prominence of the site there
were only 3 objections. The consultation responses wera as follows

»  Roods Planning Section: | am content that the poles do not interfere with visibility sightfines for drivers exiting the site. No roods
objections.

s Economic Development Section: has no objections and supports the improvements proposed for the frontage of this building.

. Community Council: supports the external chenges and improvements proposed for this building, but has a concern regording
the flagpoles in this primorily residential area (where they] may be out of place.

Whiist the Community Council made reference to the flagpoles their statement that they may be out of place is important. It is speculation
and an afterthought and cannot be read as an objection.

SPP gives weight to objections in the planning process. The lack of ebjections is a material consideration when set against the assertion
made in the reasons for refusal of unacceptably adverse impoct. Clearly the community and local residents i.e. those most affected do not
share the planning officer’'s concerns.

Assass whether these considerations warrant a departure from the Development Plan — we do not believe that there are any materlal
considerations that override our conclusion on planning policy.

5.0 Conclusion
Having regard to the reasons for refusal we conclude:

¢  Reason 1 -the council has not justified why there will be a harmful impact on the character of the surrounding residential area.
This is a building that is not in residential use. Its established use, appearance and role and function are different from the
surrounding area. All that is proposed Is the erectlon of 4 fiagpoles, which in our submission will be distinctive and attractive
and will have a lesser impact than the street furniture associated with the historic use as a church

*  Reason 2 ~ the council has failed to demonstrate why there will be an unacceptably harmful impact en the character and
appearance of the conservation area. SPP and SHEP anticipate change as inevitable in a conservation area. The alterations to
the buitding are all considered acceptable. All that Is in dispute is the erection of 4 flagpoles. These do not make an irrevocable
alteration to the appearance of the building and are a minor alteration. On the approach into the town ard in all views of the
building what will be seen is a large building that will be judged as having an historic ecclesiastical with 4 Rlagpoles outside. The
flagpoles and the flags will not obscure the vision of the building and may heighten the perception of its historic importance to
this part of Melrose, thus adding to the feeling of grandeur and spectacle around the building and its immediate surrounds not
undermining the character and appearance of the conservation area.

Flagpoles are not an unusual or alien feature in a town and they are often associated with a church, particularly a non-
established church, where flags and banners whether placed inside or cutside the church are an important part of its ceremony
and function. Whilst the use has changed the building remains unmistakably ecclesiastical and flags are not out of keeping with
the perception people are likely to have of the building and the features they would expect to find outside such a building.
Therefore, the flagpoles cannot be judged as having an unecceptable harmful impact on the character of the conservation area.

VAT Registration No 152 7435 145 A0 8Buny Registration Number 267721



9

Felsham®D

1 Western Terrace Edinburgh EH12 5OF

T +44 [0} 131 337 9640

The officer has produced no evidence that he has considered what makes the conservation area special. He has not referred to
the conservation statement and cannot judge whether there will be a harmful impact because he has no means 1o judge what

will be impacted upon and whether that will result in harm, This is a very serious weakness in his assessment and judgement.

In our submission the decision rests on the judgzement of unocceptable horm. There will be change and such change is
anticipated by SPP and SHEP. The question is whether there will be unacceptable harm. In our submission the officer has
aliowed his subjective judgement too much scope in decision making and bas not properly considered the question af harm. In
particular there is no evidence in his report of the question of harm being applied to the policy criteria or to what makes the
special character of this conservation arez.

For these reasons we conclude that there is no basis to support the reasens for refusal and respectfulty request that they be gverturned
and the appeal be granted.

VAT Registration No 152 7435 14P @0 @ d3hny Registration Number $C257721



Felsham#L

1Western Terrace Edinburgh €H12 5QF
T+44 {0) 131 3379540

Document 1

5
VAT Registration No 152 7435 14Pag eCor6npany Regisiration Number 5C267721



\| Scottish
A lBorders
~=7 COUNCIL

Newtown St Boswells Melrose TDG 0SA
Tel: 01835 825251
Fax: 01835 825071

Email: itsystemadmin@scotborders.gov.uk

Applications cannot be valigated unti all necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.

Thank you for completing this application form:

ONLINE REFERENCE 000118988-001

The online ref number is the unigue reference for your online form only. The Planning Autharity will allocate an Application Number
when your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the Planning Authority about this application.

Type of Application
What is this application for? Please selact one of the following: *

Wae strongly recommend that you refer to the help text before you complete this section.

Application for Pianning Permission (including changes of use and surface mineral working)

D Applicafion for Planning Permission in Principle

D Further Application, (including renewal of planning permission, modification, variation or removai of a planning conditicn efc)

| | Application for Approval of Matters spacified in conditions

Description of Proposal

Pigase describe the propesal including any change of use: * {Max 500 characlers)

Windeaw renovaten ang rEmeha slevaioral waro

Is this & temparary pemission? * 3 Yes [ no

If a change of use is to be inciuded in the proposal has it already taken place?
(Answer ‘No' if there is no change of use.) *

Have the works already been started or completed? *

[/] No [] Yes-Started [_] Yes - Completed

Applicant or Agent Details

Are you an applicant, or an agent? * (An a'&ant is an architecl, consukant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application}

_ | ves /] No

" | Appiicant [/ Agent

Page 66

Page 1of 7



Agent Details

Please enter Agent details

Company/Organisation:
Ref. Number:

First Name: ~

Last Name: *
Telephone Number: *
Extension Numbaer:
Mobile Number:

Fax Number:

Email Address: *

Camerons
Building Name:
Gavin Building Number:
Yuill Address 1 (Street): *
01896 753077 Address 2:
Town/City: *
Country: *
(1896 756048 Postcode: *

gala@camerons.lid.uk

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? ~

|:] Individual [Z| Organisation/Corporate entity

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or
both:*

Wilderhaugh

Galashiels

UK

TD11QJ

Applicant Details

Please enter Applicant details

Title:

Other Title:

First Name:

Last Name:
Company/Organisation: *
Telephone Number:
Exiension Number:
Mobile Numbet:

Fax Number:

Email Address:

bath:*

Building Name:

Building Number;

Address 1 (Sireet). *

Rural Renaissance Limited

Addrass 2:

Town/City: *

Country: *

Postcode: *

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or

Priorwood

Melrose

United Kingdom

TDE 9EG

Page 67

Page 2 of ¥




Site Address Details

Plarning Authority: Scottish Borders Council

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1: OFFICE WEST GROVE Address 5:

Address 2: WAVERLEY ROAD Town/City/Settlement: MELROSE
Address 3: Post Code: TD6 95L
Address 4:

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites.

Narthing 634260 Easting 354106

Pre-Application Discussion

Have you discussed your proposal with the planning authority? * D Yes 'Z No
Site Area
Please state the site area: 2822.00

Please state iha measurement type used: I:l Hectares (ha) Square Metres (sq.m)

Existing Use

Please describe the current or most recent use: (Max 500 characters)

Officer

Access and Parking

Are you proposing a new or altered vehicle access to or from a public road? * E] Yes E No

If Yes please describe and show an your drawings the position of any existing, altered or new access points, highlighting the changes
you propose to make. You should also show existing footpaths and note if there will be any impact on these.

Are you proposing any changes to public paths, public rights of way or affecting any public rights of access? * D Yes Iz’ No

If Yes please show on your drawings the position of any affected areas highlighting the changes you propose to make, including
arrangements for continuing or alternative public access. )

Hig:y’ many vehicle parking spaces {garaging and open parking) currently exist on the application 36
site? *

How many vehidle parking spaces (garaging and open parking) do you propose on the site (i.e. the 36
total of existing and any new spaces or a reduced number of spacas)? *

Plgase show on your drawings the position of existing and proposed parking spaces and identify if these are for the use of particular
types of vehicles (e.g. parking for disabled people. coaches, HGV vehicles, cycle spaces).




Water Supply and Drainage Arrangements

Will your proposat recjuire new or altered water supply or dreinage anrangements? * i:] Yos m No

Do your proposals make provision for sustainable drainage of surface water?
(e.g. SUDS arrangements) D Yes [Z No

Note: -
Please include details of SUDS arrangements on your plans

Selecting 'No' o the above question maans that you could be in breach of Environmental iegislation.

Are you propesing to connect to the public water supply network? *

D Yes

D No, using a private water supply

El No conpection required

1f No, using a private water supply, please show on plans the supply and all works needed to provide it {on or off site),

Assessment of Flood Risk

Is the site within an area of known risk of flooding? * D Yes m No D Don't Knaw

If the site is within an area of known risk of flooding you may need te submit a Flood Risk Assessment before your application can be
determined. You may wish to contact your Planning Authority or SEPA for advice on what information may be required.

Do yau think your proposal may increase the flood risk elsewhere? * C:I Yes IZI No D Don't Know
Trees
Are there any trees on or adjacent to the application site? * z Yes D No

If Yes, please mark on your drawings any treas, known protected trees and their canopy spread close to the proposal site and indicate
if any are to be cut back or felled.

Waste Storage and Colilection

Do the plans incorporate areas to store and aid the collection of waste {including recycling)? * D Yes @ No

If Yes or No, please provide further details:{Max 500 characters)

N/A

Residential Units Including Conversion

Does your proposal include new or additional houses and/or flats? * D Yes m No

All Types of Non Housing Development - Proposed New Floorspace

Doas your proposal alter or create non-residential floorspace? = D Yes @ No

Page 69 Page 4 of 7



Schedule 3 Development

Does the proposal involve a form of development listed in Schedule 3 of the Town and Country ,
Planning (Development Management Procedure {Scotland) Regulations 2013 * D Yes No D Don't Know

If yes, your proposal will additionally have to be advertised in a newspaper circulating in the area of the development. Your planning
authority will do this on your behalf but will charge you a fee. Please check the planning authority's website for advice on the
additional fee and add this to your planning fes.

 you are unsure whether your propesal involves a form of development listed in Schedule 3, please check the Help Text and
Guidance notes before contacting your planning authority.

Planning Service Employee/Elected Member Interest

Is the applicant, or the applicant’s spouse/partner, either a member of staff within the planning service or an :
elected member of the planning authority? * “ 1 Yes No

Certificates and Notices

CERTIFICATE AND NOTICE UNDER REGULATION 15 — TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND} REGULATIONS 2013

One Certificate must be completed and submitted along with this application form. This is most usually Cerfificate A, Form 1,
Certificate B, Certificate C or Certificate E.

Are you/the applicant the sole owner of ALL the land ? * CI Yes Ej No

Is any of the land part of an agricultural holding? * D Yos IZ No

Are you able to identify and give appropriate nofice to ALL the other owners? * Yes D No

Certificate Required
The following Land Ownership Certificate is required to complete this section of the proposal:

Certificate B

Cenrtificates

The certificate you have selected requires you to distribute copies of the Notice 1 document below to all of the Owners/Agricultural
tenants that you have provided, befere you can complete your certificate.

Notice 1 is Required

@ | understand my obligations io provide the above notice(s) before | can complete the cerlificates. *

Land Ownership Certificate

Certificate and Notice under Regulation 15 of the Town and Country Planning {Development Management Procedure) {Scotland)
Regulations 2013

1 hereby certify that -

{1) - No person other than myselifthe applicant was an owner [Note 4] of any part of the land to which the application relates at the
begirtning of the period of 21 days ending with the date of the accompanying application;

or—

(1) - 1 have/The Applicant has served notice on every person other than myselfithe applicant who, at the beginning of the period of 21
daye ending with the date of the accompanying application was owner [Mote 4] of any part of the land to which the application relates.

Name:
Address: NHE Borders, Rushbank, Newstead, Melrose, United Kingdom, TD6 9DA
Date of Service of Nofice: * D1/05/15

Page 70 Page 5 of 7



{2} - None of the fand 1o which the application relates constitutes or forms part of an agricultural holding;
or --
(2) - The land or part of the land to which the application relales constitutes or forms part of an agricuttural holding and | havelthe

applicant has served notice on every person other than mysetf/himself who, at the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the
date of the accompanying application was an agricultural tenant. These persons are:

MName: |

Address: | —‘

Oiare of Servibs o Notkee

Signed: Gavin Yuill
On behalf of: Rural Renaissance Limited
Date: 05/05/2015

Checkilist - Application for Planning Permission

Town and County Planning (Scotland} Act 1987

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

Piaase take a fsw moments to camplete the following checklist in order o ensure that you have provided all the necessary information
in support of your application. Failure to submit sufficient informatian with your application may result in your application being deemed
invalid. The planning suthority will not start processing your application until it is valid.

a} I this is a further application where there is a variation of conditions attached to & previous consent, have you provided a statement
to that effect?

D Yes L__| No Not applicable to this application

b) If this is an application for planning permission or planning permission in principal where there is a crown interest in the land, have
you provided a statement to that effect? "

B Yes D No |Z Not applicable to this application

c) If this is an application for planning permission, planning permission in principle or a further application and the applicalion is for
davelopment belonging to the categories of natienal or major developments (other than cne under Section 42 of the planning Act),
have you providad a Pre-Application Consultation Report? *

D Yes D No [ZI Not applicable to this application

Town ang County Planning (Scotland) Act 1997
The Town and Country Plapning {Development Management Procedure) (Scofland) Regulations 2013

d) If this is an application for planning pemmission and the application relates to development belonging to the categories of national or
major developments and you do not benefit from exemption under Regulation 13 of The Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure)} (Scotland) Regulations 2013, have you provided a Design and Access Statement? *

D Yes I:l No Not applicable to this application

&) f this is an application for planning permission and relates io development belonging to the category of loeal developments (subject
téx regulatitg’n 13. (2) and (3) of the Devalopment Management Procedure {Scotiand) Regulations 2013) heve you provided a Design
tatemnent? *

D Yes D No El Not applicable to this application

f) If your application relates to installation of an antenna to be empioyed in &n electronic communication netwark, have you provided an
ICNIRP Declaration? *

] ves [] No [/} Not applicabte to this application

Page 71 Page 6 of 7



g} If this is an application for planning permission, planning permission in principle, an application for approval of matlers specified In
conditions or an applicalion for mineral development, have you provided any other plans or drawings as necessary:

/1 site Layout Plan or Block plan.
| Elevations.

Floecr plans.

K&

Cross secfions.

Roof plan.

=

Master Plan/Framework Plan.

Landscapa plan,

N

Photographs and/or phoiomentages.

]

Other.

Provide copies of the following documents if applicable:

A copy of an Environmental Statement. * 3 Vii |L| NIA '
A Design Stalement or Design and Accass Statemant. * j ¥t [,ﬂ N/A
A Flood Risk Assessment. * || ¥os E N/A
A Drainage Impact Assessmant (including proposals for Sustainable Drainage Systems). * |:| Vib be N/A |
Drainage/SUDS layout. * HET R T
A Transport Assessment or Travel Plan. * BET E NIA

| Contaminated Land Assessment. * ] ves- [ na
Habitat Survey. ¥ ] vun 1] Nea
A Processing Agreement * " | ves /] nia

Other Statements (please specify). (Max 500 characters)

Declare - For Application to Planning Authority

I, the applicant/agent cerlify that this is an application to the planning authority as described in this form. The accompanying
plans/drawings and additional information are provided as a part of this application .

Declaration Name: Gavin Yuill
Declaration Date: 05/05/2015
Submission Daie: 05/05/2015
Payment Details

Cheque: Rural Renaissance Limited, 91258
Created: 05/05/2015 13:26

Page 72 Page 7 of 7



12440708 196LINN LOESSIBOY Auredwog ¥L 55k 261 0N vOREAEERL 1yA

Page 73

Z uawinlog

ava6 LEE TET (0) oyt L
JOSETHY Ydmoumy a3mual viapagm |




| L

PROPOSED ATTIC PLAN (1:100)

PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN (1:100)

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN {1:100)

F|oottinih Borde-rs, Counol
Town MAnd Countey
Fracining (Siootimmel) Aot
1207

Bl aocl Lo the
rerC L EeR e rirs o f thes
AmsociEmtoc Docisior

Lot B g 4l

JELF e —

t:200

—

ATTIC PLAN

- [EXISTING)

FIRET FLOOR PLAN

(EXISTING)
VTR T e— —_—
H SeT T _u
T -
Jrm=qg Ba—m Mmool
5 B R
5 ., |
Iw.ﬂ.uu SRR N T
Lotz T
= . i
I Rt io
H
n.L|u,.~‘ L

e W ¢

GROUND FLOOH PLAN
(EXISTING)

cosT 2. 3 4§

EXISTING

INTERIOR VIEW

SCALE 1:500
DOWNTAKINGS SHOWN WITH
7 DOTTED RED LNE

1erhgh A

G Thnbartum Hors

o1 hal 18 Titetush, L

Toedri &0 25007 Esduigh. EHE 80H

Fo D180 TRED el Tor Q121 R PREG

A Cadmtrn Fow 0131 35 7904
camerons

glier:

TFural Ranatsaanca Limited

Pprojct:

Westgrova, Waverlsy Road

Meirase
TE6 BSL
e Exlsting and Proposed Plans.
sce 1:100, 1,200 & 1:500 @ A3
dete: 28,0415
dmwn:  HAM
ila:
nmoer. 9208.1.02

rav.

anpeliDIe

ufijsep

;
{



12228205 JequinN uoyrusifiey Ausduag 1 SEFL 25| ON woWBLSHOY LyA

Page 75

£ Juawnaog
OPI6 LEE TET (D} ripe L
JDS ETHI qAiNQuip3 2IAld) waisas T




Scottish Sorders Council TR AR
Town Ard Country e
Planning (Scotlanc} Act
1997

sufajerst 1o the
recquirameaents of the
associated Decisian
otice

PROPQOSED FRONT ELEVATION

EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION

(]
N~
[B)
(o))
@©
o

MATERIAL KEY

K-Rena Si.oune FT Render - Anan
WM CrRGAING 13ark Finish

-]
s
§
H]
camerons
chent: Rural Renaissance Limiled
poject: Wesigrove, Waverley Aoad
Metrosa m
TDE9SL ﬂm

tile: Existing and Proposed Front Elevafien

NTS @ A3
270415

= |

nmver 9208.1.03

T

Tuaw




12428206 Jaquiny usieaaBey Ausduwar 1 SEPL 251 O vopEsIbeY 1y

Page 77

£ Wawnaog
OV96 LEE TET (D) Wb L
305 ZEHA YRINQupY aoRLAL WasEM T




Scootlish RBorders S ouncil
Town Andc Country
Planming {Scotiand) Act
1SQ7

subject 1o the
recuirements of the
ssociated Decision
MNotice,

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

o
5
]

EXISTING SIDE ELEVATION

4 Glass Qoo Co ntaw
Rl

HlrEom

n rrared Glass Sar ol Do
a1 Al g DA Enahe

| Whideahen g Ao ol T
ol 1G.} M Trrbesbush, Lah
Wﬂs_—“ﬁi Tw D134 Rm».ﬂhv.
s—alﬂll.ln.’ Fa C131 550 7o m
camercns
clent: Rural Renaissance Limited
proect  Westgrove, Waverley Road
Melrose m
OB 68l &
3
tle:  Existing and Proposed Side Elevation
smle: NTS @Al
dae.  27.0416
drmem:  HAM
the: "
wmee: 9208.1.04 L S




12LL4Z05 MmNy uoyeeBay Aubduion ¥1 SE¥L E51 ON vonBasiBay | va

Page 79

S WRWNIog
QY96 LEE TET () wye o
JUS TTHY WEINGUIPY auews) Waltam




LOGCATION P LAN t:1250

Scottish Borders Council
Town And Country
Planning (Scotland) Act
1997

subiect (o the
requirements of the
associalted Degisinn
Motice

Page 80

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of HMSO.
© Crown copyright. Al righils resarved.
Licence number: 100022432

0 25 50 75 100 125m

o

T SGALE 1n2s0

ViR Ao @
Bawiics Tarbaroues | sue a
O 10 18 Tirntaon, Lran
Tl Di tsmrr Esiouifer EH B0 =
Frin 01908 YSBO45 vl Tel 131 SEY
bRt Bk Few 01 550 7O
“—_ CENTICTI B LS. T T Tk,
camerons

cient:  Rural Renaissance Limited

project:  Westgrove, Wevertey Road
Mefrase

ubisep

TD6 85L
1tie:  Liocation Plan

scale;  1:1250 @A
dale’  28.04.15
drewm:  HAM
LL:3

wooe: 9208.1.01

weudoiessp




FelshamPD

1 Western Terrace Edinburgh EH12 50F
T +44 {0) 131 337 9640

Document 6

VAT Registration No 152 7435 14Pag %cgrgn%any Registration Number SC267721



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO
SERVICE DIRECTOR REGULATORY SERVICES

PART lll REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)

REF : 15/00504/FUL
APPLICANT : Rural Renaissance Lid
AGENT : Camerons Lid
DEVELOPMENT : Externa! alterations and erection of 4 No flagpoles
LOCATION: Office West Grove
Waverley Road
Melrose
Scottish Borders
TD6 9SL
TYPE : FUL Application

REASON FOR DELAY:

DRAWING NUMBERS:

Plan Ref Pian Type Plan Status
©208.1.01 Location Plan Refused
9208.1.02 Floor Plans Refused
9208.1.04 SIDE Elevations Refused
9208.1.03 FRONT Elevations Refused

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 3
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

Three representations have been received in objection to the proposal, on the following grounds:

(i) height of flagpoles;

(i) detrimental to rasidential amenity;

(i} flagpoles detrimental to road safety due to limiting visibility or causing a driver/pedestrian
distraction

{iv) colour of render would be out-of-place and would have an adverse visual impact, a darker and
traditional colour should be used;

{v) appearance of flagpoles; out-of-context; flags attached to building would be preferable if flags are
requirad.

Roads Planning Section: | am content that the poles do not interfere with visibility sightlines for drivers
exiting the site. No roads objections.

Economic Development Section: has no objections and supports the improvements proposed for the
frontage of this building.

Community Council: supports the external changes and improvements proposed for this building, but
has a concern regarding the flagpoles in this primarily residential area (where they) may be out of
place.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:

Page 82



Consolidated Scottish Borders Local Plan 2011

Policy BE4 - Conservation Areas

Palicy G1 - Quality Standards For New Development
Policy G7 - Infill Development

Policy H2 - Protection of Residential Amenity

Recommendation by - Stuart Herkes (Planning Officer) on 14th July 2015
SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

The site lies just outside of, but adjacent to, the Conservation Area in Melrose, and fronts Cross Avenue, on
the main approach to the town centre at Melrose from the north and west.

The building was originally a Congregationalist Church, but following some fairly insensitive alterations in the
twenlieth century, was converled to office use. It has served as both Council (water board), and more
recently, NHS offices. The Applicant advises in an emait of 07 July that their plans are now to market the
offices for commercial lettings: the main building as offices and conference facilities, and the rear as a
wellness centre. The current proposals are being brought forward in this context, to upgrade the exterior of
the building and its setting. The Applicant specifically advises that their intention is to make the building
appear contemporary, international, cosmopoliitan and welcoming. The proposals that require planning
approval are specifically the external alterations and the erection of four flag poles.

EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS

The proposed external alterations to the building with respect to fenestration are an improvement upon the
existing appearance in helping to restore a vertical emphasis. If the frames and detailing were finished in
dark colours as indicated, this would be entirely beneficial in terms of the character and appearance of the
building.

The proposed reinstatement of a sun dial in place of a clock-face raises no particular concems in terms of
what has been indicated, but the detail would be appropriately provided for prior approval since some
recessed detail appears to be indicated but not described. This matter is capable of being addressed by
planning condition.

Given the presence of render on the existing building, the proposed extension of this finish does not raise
any concerns in principle. However, the proposed colour, ‘Arran’ - described as a yellow or off-white colour
on the photomontage - would not be sensitive either to the character of the building which is still discernibly
a stone-built church building or to the appearance of surrounding properties, which are all much darker and
organic stone colours. A white, bright yellow or off-white would be liable to appear notably out-of-place in
this context; particularly given the prominence of this siting; and a darker stone colour for the render would
be sought. The Applicant has advisad that they have no particular concerns with this matter being
addressed by planning condition, which would cartainly aliow for this concem to be appropriately regulated
in the event of the proposal being considered to be otherwise acceptable. Howevar, since it is considered
that this specific proposed colour, Arran, would not be acceptable, any planning condition requiring prior
approval, would approriately include reference 10 an informative, advising that account should be taken of
the cancern that an organic colour of render be used instead of a white, off-white or bright yeliow colour
(such as that indicated on the supporting details).

The proposed name above the main doorway raises no concems, largely in being visually, onhly a small
element, but it would appear to have an unnecessarily intricate form, that might have been more
appropriataly simplified. It would be reasonable to require the prior agreement of the darker infill material or
panels at first floor level, to ensure an appropriate appeararice.

FLAGPOLES
Minimal information has been presented fo describe the proposed four fiagpoles. These are described only

within photomontages on which they are identified as being aluminium, and appear to be a white or light
colour. No advice is given as to the proposed height, but they are shown to be of equal height overtopping

Page 83



existing lamp-posts by around 1m, which suggests that they would be in the order of 8m or 9m in height. In
the event of approval, these details could be appropriately regulated by planning condition. However, it is
considared that the impacts of the proposal, and the justification for the principle of flag poles being sited in
this location at all, require further consideration.

The Applicant has provided detailed background on their reason for seeking to fly flags, which it has
explicitly advised would not be advertisements, but rather, national and international flags. The Applicant
advises that it seeks to fly these for broadly equivalent reasons to those identified in supporting reports
presented to the last main meeting of Scottish Borders Council, when the latter considered its flag flying
protocol, including the proposed erection of new free-standing flagpoles.

It is not considered that the Applicant's concern to fly flags relative to their smaller private office
development, is reasonably commensurate with the display of flags at the regional headquarters of a Local
Authority. A private firm or private development is self-evidently not charged with the same roles and
responsibilities as local government to represent the local community in the widest sense, and reflact the
sensibilities of that community. It is appreciated that the Applicant has long-standing ties with the local area
and has a particular concern to represent the local community, support local events and strengthen
international ties, but it is ultimately sel{-appointed in these roles. Its advice that it requires the flagpoles in
order to fulfil equality duties and promote inclusion in the same way as the Council, appears to be an over-
statement of the position. At least, it is not accepted that the Applicant has any formal or informal need, let
alone any statutory requirement, that would, and could, only appropriately be met by the installation of flag
poles at the site for the purpose of flying civic, national and/or international flags.

More understandably, the Applicant has advised that it considers the flags to be integral to the image it
seeks to present of the redevelopment of the site, as a contemporary, international, cosmopoiitan and
welcoming business venue and office accommodation. However, the aforementioned desire to rebrand the
building, does not in itself reasonably outweigh any need in planning terms, to consider the specific impacts
of the proposed flagpoles upon the environment and amenity of the site and the surrounding area.

While business premises, parficularly those with international interests, may be accompanied by flags, the
flying of flags is not in itself synonymous with the creation of a contemporary, international, cosmopolitan
and welcoming environment. Flags may be flown within a wide variety of contexts; while equally well, the
type of environment the Applicant wishes to establish Is not self-evidently solely dependent upon the
erection of flagpoles for its achievement. In this particular conlext, the proposal is that the flags are erected
in front of a building that is still reasonably interpretable as a former church, rather than in relation to a
purpose-built office building. The erection of flagpoles in this context (particularly if they were to be as high
and dominant as the photomontage indicates) would be liable to give the development an ambivalent
appearance, which would more likely be read as a civic or institutional context, rather than interpreted as
denocting a private office development or conference centre.

The unusualness of this appearance would be highlighted further, firstly, by the prominence of this elevation
within views from the public realm at a junction and on a gateway approach to Melrose's town centre,
making this appearance highly visible in itseif. Secondly, and with regard to setting, the application site is
not in fact within a central location, but lies on the approach to, rather than within, the town centra. lts
appearance within an outlying and predominantly residential area, would be somewhat remarkable in itself,
and arguably at odds with its surroundings. At least the appearance of flags at this prominent, outlying
location relative to the town cenire, would arguably be as likely, if not more likely, to denole the setting of a
hotel, rather than an office or conference centre, thereby further confusing, rather than clarifying, the
character of the development. Taking account of these specific circumstances, the erection of flags on this
site would not clarify the function of the building or reinforce any coherent new character. On the contrary, it
would instead, be liable to confuse the character of a highly visible and prominently localed site, on the
approach to the Conservation Area and town centre at Melrose.

There is furthermore, a lack of space at the front of the building for any display of flags and particularly any
of the height proposed. Rather than being displayed on a large and spacious forecourt or apron, the flags
would instead be accommodated in relatively close proximity to both the building and the public pavement.

if these flagpoles were to be any height at all {and certainly if they were indeed to be higher than the lamp-
posts as is currently indicated), then they would be liable to appear out-of-scale with, as well as out-of-place
relative to, their surroundings. Beyond this impact however, the flag poles would at any height, contribute to
a sense of unnecessary clutter next fo a prominent and highly visible junction. A simpler, more open outlook

Page 84



to the front, would be visuaily more appropriate, and more in-keeping with the character of the building and
surrounding area. The introduction of an array of four flagpoles weould be liable to appear somewhat over-
stated relative {¢ the building's modest setting.

All in all, the proposed flagpoles would be over-dominant, relative to the principal elevation of a building with
a relatively modest setting, which is nonetheless prominently located and clearly visible from the public
realm, including from the surrounding road network, and, moreover, prominently located within a ‘gateway'
approach to the Conservation Area and town centre at Melrose. Flagpoles are not in keeping either with the
predominantly traditional and ecclesiastical character of the building, or with the predominantly traditional
and residentlal character of surrounding buildings. The erection of flagpoles, even in isolation from the other
proposals, would give the building, currently in office use, a very ambivalent character, and would appear
significantly out-of-place within, and also out-of-scale with, their surroundings.

With respect to the Iatter point, the Applicant has offered to reduce the height of the flagpoles to an
unspecified but lower height. A substantial reduction in height of the flagpoles would obviously have some
potential to improve the visual impacts upon the amenity and environment of the surrounding area by
making these at least slightly less prominent visually. However, it is not considered that a reduction is
sufficient in itself to address the above noted concerns. For clarity, the objection here is to the principle of
flagpoles being erected at all, rather than to the specific height of flagpoles that the supporting details
indicate,

PRIORWOOD

The Applicant wishes account to be taken of the fact that it currently flies flags at its own headquarters
building at Priorwood. lt envisages that the proposed flagpoles would be used in broadly an equivalent way
to these existing flagpoles. The latter, it advises, are used to promote local events, and/or to respect, and
raise awareness amongst the logal community of, national and internatienal celebrations and
commemarations.

Three flagpoles were approved at Priorwood in 2002, as the subject of an Advertisement Consent
02/00636/ADV, which took explicit account of the fact that the Applicant wished to fly national and
international flags as opposed to advertisements. These flagpoles are located at the entrance to the
Applicant's site at Priorwood. Howaever, not only are these existing flagpoles smaller and offset, so as to be
less prominent than the proposed would be in relation to its site, but the site itself at Priorwood is altogether
less prominently located within Mefrose than the application site.

Notwithstanding that the Applicant's concem to fly flags at their existing premises has previously been
supported, itis not considered that this is reasonably an equivalent context to the current proposal.
Priorwood is a more appropriate opportunity to accommodate flags than the application site by virtue of it
being less substantially prominent than the application site.

It is not considered that the previous approval in relation to Priorwood has set, or has established, any
precedent for the current proposal which is reasonably considered on its own planning merits.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

Although the Applicant has not applied for a change of use relative to the subject building, in the event of
approval, an informative would need to advise that any proposal to accommodate conference facilities, or a
wellbeing centre, would need to be discussed with the Planning Authoriiy in case either or both of these
proposals were to require to be made the subject of a planning application. Too little information has been
provided, but both are potentially uses that would not be covered under use Class 4.

While the objectors raise concerns with respect to potential road safety concerns, the Roads Pilanning
Section has no objections.

The proposed alterations to the exterior of the building raise no residential amenity concemns for surrounding
dwellings. Aithough it is understood from verbal advice from Environmental Health to be extremely uniikely,
it is nonetheless not inconceivable that the flags might have potential for causing disturbance to surrounding
residential properties, due to nolse nuisance impacts in windier conditions. The point is therefore not in itself

Page 85



objectionable, but an informative would in the event of approval, be appropriately included to advise of the
potential risk.

CONCLUSION

Notwithstanding some concemns about specific details, all matters relating to the proposed external
alterations are ultimately capable of being regulated by planning conditions. However, the erection of
flagpoles is considered to be objectionable in principle, since these are not compatible with, or respectiui of,
the character of the surrounding area and neighbouring built form, and as a consequence of its location
adjacent to the Conservation Area, would have an unacceptable adverse impact upon the character and
appearance of the Conservation Area.

Although the external alterations were capable of approval (subject to conditions) the flagpoles are part of
the application, and have been maintained as such by the Applicant. Accordingly the application can only
be refused in its entirety.

REASON FOR DECISION :

The proposed development is contrary to Adopted Local Plan Policy G1, in that the erection of the four no
flagpoles, would not be compatible with, or respectful of, the character of the sumounding area and
neighbeouring built form.

The proposed development is contrary to Adopted Local Plan Policy BE4 in that the erection of the four no
flagpoles would have an unacceptable adverse impact upon the character and appearance of the
Conservalion Area as a consequence of the unusual character of this aspect of the development; its siting
immediately adjacent to the Conservation Area; and the high visibility of the site, which would mean that the
aforementioned impacts would go unmitigated.

Recommendation: Refused

1 The proposed development is contrary to Adopted Local Plan Palicy G1, in that the erection of the
four no flagpoles, would not be compatible with, or respectful of, the character of the surrounding
area and neighbouring built form.

2 The proposed development is contrary to Adopted Locat Plan Policy BE4 in that the erection of the
four no flagpoles would have an unacceptable adverse impact upon the character and appearance
of the Conservation Area as a conseguence of the unusual character of this aspect of the
development; its siting immediately adjacent to the Conservation Area; and the high visibility of the
site, which would mean that the aforementioned impacts would go unmitigated.

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 86



1 Western Terrace  Edinburgh EH12 5QF
T+44{0) 131337 9640

Document 7

VAT Registration No 152 7435 14 Pag %Q%:Zmy Registration Number SC267721



g‘é?-été?-'; Regulatory Services

—_—
— Famar}

L= ey NI

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING {(SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

Town and Country Planning {Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

| Application for Planning Permission Reference: 15/00504/FUL

To: Rural Renaiseance Ltd per Camerons Ltd Per Gavin Yuill 1 Wilderhaugh Galashiels Scottish
Borders TD1 1QJ

With reference to your application validated on 18th May 2015 for planning permission under the Town and
Country Planning {Scotland) Act 1897 for the following development -

Proposal : External alterations and erection of 4 No flagpoles

at: Office West Grove Waverley Road Melrose Scottish Borders TD6 9SL

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the attached
schedule.

Dated 14th July 2015
Regulatory Services
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE

TD6 0SA

Service Director Regulatory Services

Visit hitp://eplanning.scotborders.gov.ukionline-applications/

Page 88




St Regulary S

P "IN § 1
D TN AN LA

APPLICATION REFERENCE: 15/00504/FUL

Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
9208.1.01 Location Pian Refused
9208.1.02 Floor Plans Refused
9208.1.04 SIDE Elevations Refused
9208.1.03 FRONT Elevations Refused

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The proposed development is contrary to Adopted Local Fian Policy G1, in that the eraciion of the

four no flagpoles, would not be compatible with, or respectful of, the character of the surrounding
area and neighbouring built form.

2 The propased development is contrary to Adopted Local Plan Policy BE4 in that the erection of the
four no flagpoles would have an unacceptable adverse impact upon the character and appearance
of the Conservation Area as a consequence of the unusual character of this aspect of the
development; its siling immediately adjacent to the Canservation Area; and the high visibility of the
site, which would mean that the aforementioned impacts would go unmitigated.

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT

if the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Autharity to refuse planning permission for or
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning autherity to review the case under Section 43A
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland} Act 1997 within three months from the date of this notice. The
notice of review should be addressed to Corporate Adminisiration, Council Headguarters, Newtown St
Boswelis, Melrose TDE OSA.

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the iand in accordance with the
provisions of Part & of the Town and Country Planning {Scotland) Act 1997

Visit http:// ing.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/
Page 89



Falsham~D

1 Western Terrace Edinburgh EH12 5QF
T +44 {0} 131 337 3640

Document 8

VAT Registration No 152 7435 142 206 Jany Registration Number SC267721



From: Michael Crawford

Sent: 07 July 2015 11:35

To: Herkes, Stuart

Ce:

Subject: West Grove 15/00504/FUL, flag poles

Stuart,
I understand that they are currently two points of dispute which require resolution in
order for this application to be approved under delegated powers.

o Colour of the external render:- we are content that this is dealt with post
approval, as a condition, when we are able to produce sample colours, rather
than rely on the computer generated image.

» Flag poles:- These are an essential part of our proposals for this
development.

Background:-

My pension fund acquired the former NHS offices on 1%t July, our plans are to
market the offices for commercial lettings. The main building as offices and
conference facilities and the rear as a wellness centre. Most other bidders, 1
understand, we proposing to develop the site for flats.

For this to be successful the building internal and externally must support the
marketing strategy. The building must be appear contemporary, international,
cosmopolitan and welcoming.

We request that you consider the following prior to finalising your
recommendation:-

1, Flying of flags at West Grove compliments and supports the positive
aspects of SBC's recent decision on flags:-

A report to counciliors said "This option allows Scotlish Borders Council 1o actively and openly
demonstrate its commitment to equality, to celebrate the diversity within our community and
promote inclusion *

Councillors agreed to implement the poiicy and ere¢t three flagpoles at a meeting of the full
council on Thursday.

All modern business organisations must be inclusive and flying flags helps
us to promote this policy, the removal of these flags would inhibit this.
SBC report supports this argument.

“However, this option may inhibit Scottish Borders Council's ability to actively demonstrate the
two other elements of its equality duties (to promote ecuality of opportunity and to foster good
relations) in retation to flag flving.”

2. Promotes Melrose and reflects positively on its community:-
We have been flying flags at our Priorwood Offices for a number of years.
[nitially just recognising the national days of countries within the UK,
more recently we have expanded this to include a number of countries
around the globe that we have a connection with. This has proved very
popular.

Page 91




Our welcome for the visiting teams at this year’s Melrose 7s was
retweeted by North Western University (South Africa) to their 10,600
followers. Not only did this promote Melrose and the Scottish Borders to
an international audience, but promoted discussion within the town - as
do most of our flags. Many people have told us they look to the Crawford’s
flags to see which national holiday it is! We share photographs of our flags
on Facebook to enhance their reach. Our posts have a large, worldwide
audience; one of our posts reached 3400 people, of which 1600 interacted
with the post. This promotes the Borders - as a place to live, visit and do
business .

4.5 Crawlord drd Genetation Lmvied

The fags are up 1o weicome me Sevens mams {rom Non West Un versiy
{RSA) and Bermany. who srive tht week for 1ne Meirose Sevens. Good
juck in the toumarment o6 Saturday. we ok fonwand 10 walehing you play

E 1.3, Coawdocd drt Gemraton Linuten

To alf oo S Inents ana SUStETET - masty Viatany Dayl it beiatns
ot BED Quner wis on holdsy on Frday!

Page 92



Melrose is a cosmopolitan community with visitors and residents hailing
from all across the globe. These flags generate the welcoming and
inclusive image.

The flags are removed and raised every day and never has there been an
incident of vandalism. They do not interfere with any views or pose any
threat to the community, but contribute to the surroundings.

3. Economic benefits to Melrose:-

When occupied by the NHS over sixty people worked there, this
generated additional economic activity within Melrose. At present the
building is empty, and will remain until we can complete the
refurbishment and successfully market it. We do not expect to be able to
secure a single tenant, as is the nature of the commercial property market
in the Borders, instead we will need to attract many smaller companies on
short flexible terms. To do this we must create the necessary ambiance,
the flags will support this.

4 Flags are commoenly found in conservation areas, and are not limited to
public or government buildings - banks, hotels and offices fly flags.

5 We will not fly advertising banners from these poles, and as you have
stated, this would require separate consent.

6 There were only three objections.
As a concession we can reduce the height of the poles.
We hope you will appreciate the positive impact these flags will have on this
important development and the town of Melrose, and your department will be
able to support the flgas inclusion.

Best Regards

Michael Crawford

Michael J. Crawford BSc. MSc. MCIOB, MAPM
1.5 Crawford 3™ Generation Ltd

Priorwood

Melrose

TD6 9EG

Page 93



Good Morning
Application Ref 15/00504/FUL

Rural Renaissance
Office West Grove
Waverley Road
Melrose

TD6 95L

External alterations and erection of 4 No flagpoles
Melrose & District Community Council support the external changes and improvements
proposed for this building

But have a concern regarding the flagpoles in this primarily residential area may be out
of place

Regards
Robin Chisholm for Melrose & District Community Council

Page 94



1 Western Terrace Edinburgh EH12 5QF
T +44(0) 131 337 9640

Document 9

o Page 95 o
VAT Registration No 152 7435 14 Company Registration Number SC267721



Flags — History and Use August 2015

Flag

From Wikipedia, the free encyclopedia
Jump to: navigation, search

For other uses, see Flag (disambiguation).

L : E F = L - ] &

ﬁg ul; aﬂa{g could also possess the meaning of conquering something. Jaan Kiinnap with
the flag of Estonia in the top of Lenin Peak (7134 m) in 1989.

A flag is a piece of fabric (most often rectangular or quadrilateral) with a distinctive design
that is used as a symbol, as a signaling device, or as decoration. The term flag is also used to
refer to the graphic design employed, and flags have since evolved into a general tool for
rudimentary signalling and identification, especially in environments where communication
is similarly challenging (such as the maritime environment where semaphore is used).
National flags are potent patriotic symbols with varied wide-ranging interpretations, often
including strong military associations due to their original and ongoing military uses. Flags
are also used in messaging, advertising, or for other decorative purposes. The study of flags is
known as vexillology, from the Latin word vexillum, meaning flag or banner.

Due to the use of flags by military units, "flag" is also used as the name of some military

units. A flag (Arabic: ¢} s) is equivalent to a brigade in Arab countries, and in Spain, a flag
(Spanish: bandera) is a battalion-equivalent in the Spanish Legion.

Page 96



Contents

[hide]

1 History
2 National flags
o 2.1 Civil flags

o 2.2 War flags
o 2.3 International flags

e 3 Atsea

4 Shapes and designs
o 4.1 Vertical flags

5 Religious flags

6 Linguistic flags

7 In sports

8 Diplomatic flags

9 In politics

10 Vehicle flags

11 Swimming flags

12 Railway flags

13 Flagpoles
o 13.1 Record heights
o 13.2 Design

14 Hoisting the flag

15 Flags and communication

16 Flapping

17 Commercial Products

18 See also

19 References

History[edit]

Further information: Vexilloid, Heraldic flag and Royal Standard

This section relies largely or entirely upon a single source. Relevant discussion
@ may be found on the talk page. Please help improve this article by introducing
citations to additional sources. (May 2014)

Page 97



Bronze flag found in Iran, 3rd millennium BC

In antiquity, field signs or standards were used in warfare that can be categorized as vexilloid
or "flag-like". Examples include the Sassanid battle standard Derafsh Kaviani, and the
standards of the Roman legions such as the eagle of Augustus Caesar's Xth legion, or the
dragon standard of the Sarmatians; the latter was let fly freely in the wind, carried by a
horseman, but judging from depictions it was more similar to an elongated dragon kite than to
a simple flag,

During the High Middle Ages flags came to be used primarily as a heraldic device in battle,
allowing more easily to identify a kni ght than only from the heraldic device painted on the
shield. Already during the high medieval period, and increasingly during the Late Middle
Ages, city states and communes such as those of the Old Swiss Confederacy also began to
use flags as ficld signs. Regimental flags for individual units became commonplace during

the Early Modern period.

Suz'agi. of EoJ ae-yeon, captured in 1871

During the peak of the age of sail, beginning in the early 17th century, it was customary {and
later a legal requirement) for ships to carry flags designating their nationality;"! these flags
eventually evolved into the national flags and maritime flags of today. Flags also became the
preferred means of communications at sea, resulting in various systems of flag signals; see,

International maritime signal flags.

Use of flags outside of military or naval context begins only with the rise of nationalist
sentiment by the end of the 18th century; the earliest national flags date to that period, and

during the 19th century it became common for every sovereign state to introduce a national
ﬂag_[dmmﬂ_erﬂdl

National flags[edit]

Main article: National flag

Page 98



=== Pl gl
Flags at half-staff outside Central Plaza, Hong Kong, after the 2008 Sichuan Earthquake. The
Flag of Saudi Arabii is exempted.

= [ =

Tribal fags at Meeting Place Monument/Flag Plaza at the Oklahoma State Capitol.

Thie Flag of Ethiopia's colors inspired the colors of many African national flags.

The flag of the Arab Revolt of 1916 inspired the flags of many Arab states.

One of the most popular uses of a flag is to symbolize a nation or country. Some national
flags have been particularly inspirational to other nations, countries, or subnational entities 1n
the design of their own flags. Some prominent examples include:

+ The flag of Denmark, the Dannebrog, is attested in 1478. It inspired the cross design
of the other Nordic countries: Norway, Sweden, Finland, Iceland, and regional
Scandinavian flags for the Faroe Islands, Aland, Scania and Bornholm, as well as
flags for the non-Scandinavian Shetland and Orkney.®

o The flag of the Netherlands is the oldest tricolour. Its three colors of red, white and
blue go back to Charlemagne's time, the 9th century. The coastal region of what today
is the Netherlands was then known for its cloth in these colors. Maps from the early

Page 99



16th century already put flags in these colors next to this region, like Texeira's map of
1520. A century before that, during the 15th century, the three colors were mentioned
as the coastal signals for this area, with the 3 bands straight or diagonal, single or
doubled. As state flag it first appeared around 1572 as the Prince's Flag in orange—
white_blue. Soon the more famous red—white-blue began appearing, becoming the
prevalent version from around 1630. Orange made a come back during the civil war
of the late 18th century, signifying the orangist or pro-stadtholder party. During WWwW2
the pro-nazi NSB used it, so using that version today would be the same as hoisting
the red swastika flag. Any symbolism has been added later to the three colors,
although the orange comes from the House of Orange-Nassau. Surprisingly, this use
of orange comes from Nassau, which today uses orange-blue, not from Orange, which
today uses red-blue. However, the usual way to show the link with the House of
Orange-Nassau is the orange pennant above the red-white-blue.

It's said that the Dutch Tricolor has inspirediimiazd many flags but most notably
those of Russia, New York City, and South Africa (the 1928-94 flag as well the
current flag). As the probable inspiration for the Russian flag, it is the source too for
the Pan-Slavic colors red, white and blue, adopted by many Slavic states and peoples
as their symbols. Examples: Slovakia, Serbia, and Slovenia.

The national flag of France was designed in 1794. As a forerunner of revolution,
France's tricolour flag style has been adopted by other pations. Examples: Italy, Costa
Rica, Dominican Republic, Ireland, Haiti, Romania, Mexico, etc.

The Union Flag (Union Jack) of the United Kingdom is the most commeonly used.
British colonies typically flew a flag based on one of the ensigns based on this flag,
and many former colonies have retained the design to acknowledge their cultural
history. Examples: Australia, Fiji, New Zealand, Tuvalu, and also the Canadian
provinces of Manitoba, Ontario and British Columbia, and the American state of
Bawaii; see commons:Flags based on British ensigns.

The flag of the United States, also nicknamed The Stars and Stripes or Old Glory.
Some nations imitated this flag so as to symbolize their similarity to the United States
and/or the American Revolution. Examples: Liberia, Chile, Uruguay'dasnssed Tajiwan
(ROC), Malaysia and the French region of Brittany.

The original tricolor Flag of Iran, the source for the Pan-Iranian colors green, white
and red adopted by many Indo-Iranian or Aryan states and peoples as their symbols.
Examples: Tajikistan, Kurdistan, Republic of Ararat, Talysh-Mughan.

Ethiopia was seen as a model by emerging African states of the 1950s and 1960s, as it
was one of the oldest independent states in Africa. Accordingly, its flag became the
source of the Pan-African colors, or "Rasta colors”. Examples: Benin, Togo, Senegal,
Ghana, Mali, Guinea.

The flag of Turkey, which is very similar to last flag of the old Ottoman Empire, has
been an inspiration for the flag designs of many other Muslim nations. During the
time of the Ottomans the crescent began to be associated with Islam and this is
reflected on the flags of Algeria, Azerbaijan, Comoros, Libya, Mauritania, Pakistan
and Tunisia.

The Pan-Arab colors, green, white, red and black, are derived from the flag of the
Great Arab Revolt as seen on the flags of Jordan, Libya, Kuwait, Sudan, Syria, the
United Arab Emirates, Western Sahara, Egypt, Iraq, Yemen and Palestine.

The Soviet flag, with its golden symbols of the hammer and sickle on a red field, was
an inspiration to flags of other communist states, such as East Germany, People's
Republic of China, Vietnam, Angola, Afghanistan (1978-1980) and Mozambigue.

Page 100



+ The flag of Venezuela, created by Francisco de Miranda to represent the
independence movement in Venezuela that later gave birth to the "Gran Colombia”,
inspired the flags of Colombia and Ecuador, both sharing three bands of yellow, blue
and red with the flag of Venezuela.

« The flag of Argentina, created by Manuel Belgrano during the war of independence,
was the inspiration for the United Provinces of Central America's flag, which in turn
was the origin for the flags of Guatemala, Honduras, El Salvador, and Nicaragua.

+ Flags of Native American nations in the United States are common and many fribes
have chosen a flag as their symbol of choice.

National flag designs are often used to signify nationality in other forms, such as flag patches.
Civil flags|edit]

Main article: Civil flag

A civil flag is a version of the national flag that is flown by civilians on non-govemment
installations or craft. The use of civil flags was more common in the past, in order to denote
buildings or ships that were not manned by the military. In some countries the civil flag is the

same as the war flag or state flag, but without the coat of arms, such as in the case of Spain,
and in others it's an alteration of the war flag.

War flagsfedit]

Main articles: War flag and Colours, standards and guidons

Standing for the UK's Royal Air orcc, the Ensign of the RAF displays the RAF roundel.

Several countries (including the United Kingdom and the Soviet Union) have had unique
flags flown by their armed forces, rather than the national flag.

Other countries' armed forces (such as those of the United States or Switzerland) use their
standard national flag. The Philippines' armed forces may use their standard national flag, but
during times of war the flag is turned upside down. Bulgaria's flag is also turned upside down
during times of war, These are also considered war flags, though the terminology only applies
to the flag's military usage.

Large versions of the war flag flown on the warships of countries' navies are known as battle
ensigns. In war waving a white flag is a banner of truce or surrender.

Four distinctive African flags currently in the collection of the National Maritime Museum in
Britain were flown in action by Itsekiri ships under the control of Nana Olomu during
conflict in the late 19th century. One is the flag generally known as the Benin flag and one is
referred to as Nana Olomu's flag.*

Page 101



International flags]edit]

Among international flags are the Flag of the United Nations, the Ql ic flag, and the
Paralympic flag.

The Flag of the United Nations

At sea[edit]
Mouin article: Maritime flag

The international maritime signal flag Delta (letter D)

Flags are particularly important at sea, where they can mean the difference between life and
death, and consequently where the rules and regulations for the flying of flags are strictly
enforced. A national flag flown at sea is known as an ensign. A courteous, peaceable
merchant ship or yacht customarily flies its ensign (in the usual ensign position), together
with the flag of whatever nation it is currently visiting at the mast (known as a gourtesy flag).
To fly one's ensign alone in foreign waters, a foreign port or in the face of a foreign warship
traditionally indicates a willingness to fight, with cannon, for the right to do so. As of 2009,
this custom is still taken seriously by many naval and port authorities and is readily enforced
in many parts of the world by boarding, confiscation and other civil penalties.

In some countries yacht ensigns are different from merchant ensigns in order to signal that
the yacht is not carrying cargo that requires a customs declaration. Carrying commercial
cargo on a boat with a yacht ensign is deemed to be smuggling in many jurisdictions. There is
a system of international maritime signal flags for numerals and letters of the alphabet. Each
flag or pennant has a specific meaning when flown individually. As well, semaphore flags

can be used to communicate on an ad hoc basis from ship to ship over short distances.

Page 102



Traditionally, a vessel flying under the courtesy flag of a specific nation, regardiess of the
vessel's country of registry, is considered to be operating under the law of her 'host' nation.

Another category of maritime flag flown by some United States Government ships is the
distinguishing mark. Although the United States Coast Guard has its own service ensign, all
other U.S. Government ships fly the national ensign their service ensign, following United
States Navy practice. To distinguish themselves from ships of the Navy, such ships
historically have flown their parent organization's flag from a forward mast as a
distinguishing mark. Today, for example, commissioned ships of the National Oceanic and
Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) fly the NOAA flag as a distinguishing mark.

Shapes and designs[edit]

The flag of Nepal. a national flag that is not rectangular

The flag of Kiribati, a banner of arms

Flags are usually rectangular in shape (often in the ratio 2:3, 1:2, or 3:5), but may be of any
shape or size that is practical for flying, including square, triangular, or swallow tailed. A
more unusual flag shape is that of the flag of Nepal, which is in the shape of two stacked
triangles. Other unusual flag shapes include the flag of Ohio and the flag of Tampa.

Many flags are dyed through and through to be inexpensive to manufacture, such that the
reverse side is the mirror image of the obverse (front) side, generally the side displayed when
the flag is flying from the observer's point of view from left, the side of the pole, to right.
This presents two possibilities:

1. If the design is symmetrical in an axis parallel to the flag pole, obverse and reverse
will be identical despite the mirror-reversal, such as the Indian Flag or Canadian Flag

Page 103



2. Ifnot, the obverse and reverse will present two variants of the same design, one with
the hoist on the left (usually considered the obverse side, see flag illustrations), the
other with the hoist on the right (usually considered the reverse side of the flag). This
is very common and usually not disturbing if there is no text in the design. See also

US reverse side flag.

Some complex flag designs are not intended for through and through implementation,
requiring separate obverse and reverse sides if made correctly. In these cases there is a design
element (usually text) which is not symmetric and should be read in the same direction,
regardless of whether the hoist is to the viewer's left or right. These cases can be divided into
two types:

1. The same (asymmetric) design may be duplicated on both sides. Such flags can be
manufactured by creating two identical through and through flags and then sewing
them back to back, though this can affect the resulting combination’s Tesponsiveness
to the wind. Depictions of such flags may be marked with the symbol ‘5], indicating
the reverse is congruent to (rather than a mirror image of) the obverse.

2. Rarely, the reverse design may differ, in whole or in part, from that of the obverse.
Examples of flags whose reverse differs from the obverse inciude the flag of
Paraguay, the flag of Oregon, and the historical flag of the Soviet Union. Depictions
of such flags may be marked with the symbol 7.

Common designs on flags include crosses, stripes, and divisions of the surface, or field, into
bands or quarters—patterns and principles mainly derived from heraldry. A heraldic coat of
arms may also be flown as a banner of arms, as is done on both the state flag of Maryland and
the flag of Kiribati.

The de jure flag of Libya under Muammar Gaddafi, which consisted of a rectangular field of
green, was for a long period the only national flag using a single color and no design or
insignia. However, other historical states have also used flags without designs or insignia,
such as the Soviet Republic of Hungary, whose flag was a plain field of red.

Colors are nommnally described with common names, such as "red", but may be further
specified vsing colorimetry.

The largest flag flown from a flagpole worldwide, according to Guinness World Records, is
the flag of Mexico flown in Piedras Negras, Mexico. This flag was about 2058 square
meters.® The largest flag ever made was the flag of Qatar; the flag, which measures at
101,978 square meters, was completed in December 2013 in Doha. ™

Vertical flags|edit]
Vertical flags are sometimes used in lieu of the standard horizontal flag in central and eastern

Europe, particularly in the German-speaking countries. This practice came about because the
relatively brisk wind needed to display horizontal flags is not common in these countries.”!

Page 104



5b

The standard horizontal flag (no. 1 in the preceding illustration) is nonetheless the form most
often used even in these countries.””

The vertical flag (German: Hochformatflagge or Knatterflagge; no. 2) is a vertical form of
the standard flag. The flag's design may remain unchanged (No. 2a) or it may change, e.g. by
changing horizontal stripes to vertical ones (no. 2b). If the flag carries an emblem, it may
remain centered or may be shifted slightly upwards. =

The vertical flag for hoisting from a beam (German: Auslegerflagge or Galgenflagge; no.
3) is additionally attached to a horizontal beam, ensuring that it is fully displayed even if
there is no wind.&

The vertical flag for hoisting from a horizontal pole (German: Hiingeflagge; no. 4) is
hoisted from a horizontal pole, normally attached to a building. The topmost stripe on the
horizontal version of the flag faces away from the building *H®

The vertical flag for hoisting from a crossbar or banner (German: Bannerflagge; no. 5) is
firmly attached to a horizontal crossbar from which it is hoisted, either by a vertical pole (no.

5a) or a horizontal one (no. 5b). The topmost stripe on the horizontal version of the flag
nonmally faces to the left.l!!

Religious flags{edit]

See also: Religion in national symbols

Page 105



Jain — Five-Colored Flag

Flags can play many different roles in religion. In Buddhism, praver flags are used, usnaily in
sets of five differently colored flags. Many national flags and other flags include religious
symbols such as the cross, the crescent, or a reference to a patron saint. Flags are also adopted
by religious groups and flags such as the Jain flag and the Christian flag are used to represent
a whole religion.

Linguistic flags|edit]

Flag of La Francophonie

l !‘1] o DE " ! l

Flag of Hispanicity

Page 106



*

Flag of Esperanto

As languages rarely have a flag designed to represent them," it is a common but unofficial
practice to use national flags to identify them. The practice is deprecated'® because it is often
considered insulting"¥ and because flags tend to evoke feelings other than the intended
meaning, Examples of such use include:

o representing language skills of an individual, like a staff member of a company
« displaying available languages on a multilingual website or software.

Though this can be done in an uncontroversial manner in some cases, this can easily lead to
some problems for certain languages:

« languages generating language dispute, such as Romanian and Moldavian which some
consider two different languages; and
» languages spoken in more than one country, such as English or Arabic.

In this second case, common solutions include symbolising these languages by:

the flag of the country where the language originated

the flag of the country having the largest number of native speakers

a mixed flag of the both (when this is not the same)

the flag of the country most identified with that langunage in a specific region (e.g.
Portuguese Language: Flag of Portugal in Europe and Flag of Brazil in South
America). A Portugal-Brazil mixed flag, usually divided diagonally, is also a
possibility.

Thus, on the Internet, it is common to see the English language associated with the flag of the
United Kingdom, or sometimes the flag of England, the flag of the United States or a 1.5.-
UK mixed flag, usually divided diagonalily.

In sportsfedit]
Because of their ease of signalling and identification, flags are often used in sports.

« In association football, linesmen carry small flags along the touch lines. They use the
flags to indicate to the referee potential infringements of the laws, or who is entitled to
possession of the ball that has gone out of the field of play, or, most famously, raising
the flag to indicate an offside offence. Officials called touch judges use flags for
similar purposes in both codes of rugby.

Page 107



In American and Canadian football, referees use penalty flags to indicate that a foul
has been committed in game play. The phrase used for such an indication is flag on
the play. The flag itself is a small, weighted handkerchief, tossed on the field at the
approximate point of the infraction; the intent is usually to sort out the details after the
current play from scrimmage has concluded. In American football, the flag is usually
yellow; in Canadian football, it is usually orange. In the National Football I eague,
coaches also use red challenge flags to indicate that they wish to contest a ruling on
the field.

In yacht racing, flags are used to communicate information from the race committee
boat to the racers. Different flags hoisted from the committee boat may communicate
a false start, changes in the course, a cancelled race, or other important information.
Racing boats themselves may also use flags to symbolize a protest or distress. The
flags are often part of the nautical alphabetic system of International maritime signal
flags, in which 26 different flags designate the 26 letters of the Latin alphabet.

Flags flown at a car race

In auto and motorcycle racing, racing flags are used to communicate with drivers.
Most famously, a checkered flag of black and white squares indicates the end of the
race, and victory for the leader. A yellow flag is used to indicate caution requiring
slow speed and a red flag requires racers to stop immediately. A black flag is used to
indicate penalties.

Main article: Racing flags

In addition, fans of almost all sports wave flags in the stands to indicate their support
for the participants. Many sports teams have their own flags, and, in individual sports,
fans will indicate their support for a player by waving the flag of his or her home
country,

Capture the flag is a popular children's sport.

In Gaelic football and Hurling a green flag is used to indicate a goal while a white
flag is used to indicate a point

In Australian rules football, the goal umpire will wave two flags to indicate a goal
(worth six points) and a single flag to indicate a behind (worth one point).

For safety, dive flags indicate the locations of underwater scuba divers or that diving
operations are being conducted in the vicinity.

In water sports such as Wakeboarding and Water-Skiing, an orange flag is held in
between runs to indicate someone is in the water.

In golf, the hole is marked with a flag. The flagpole is designed to fit centered within
the base of the hole and is removable. Many courses will use color-coded flags to

Page 108



determine a hole location at the front, middle or rear of the green. However color-
coded flags are not used in the professional tours.

+ Flag poles with flags of all shapes and sizes are used by marching bands, drum corps,
and winter guard teams use flags as a method of visual enhancement in performances.

Diplomatic flags[edit]

Some countries use diplomatic flags, such as the United Kingdom tuas el tabise 82 gnd the
Kingdom of Thajlandrimsesfie Enbss faz)

In politics[edit]

The Rainbow flag of the LGBT social movement. Similar flags are used in Europe to support
pacifism and in Peru and Bolivia to represent the indigenous peoples of the Andes.

Social and political movements have adopted flags, to increase their visibility and as a
unifying symbol.

The socialist movement uses red flags o represent their cause. The anarchist movement has a
variety of different flags, but the primary flag associated with them is the black flag. In the
Spanish civi] war, the anarcists used the red-and-black bisected flag. In the 20th century, the
rainbow flag was adopted as a symbol of the LGBT social movements. Bisexual and
transgender pride flags were later designed, in an attempt to emulate the rainbow flag's
SUCCESS.

Some of these political flags have become national flags, such as the red flag of the Soviet
Union and national socialist banners for Nazi Germany The present Flag of Portugal is based
on what had been the political flag of the Portuguese Republican Party previous to the 5
October 1910 revolution which brought this party to power.

Vehicle flags|edit]

Flags are often representative of an individual's affinity or allegiance to a country, team or
business and can be presented in various ways. A popular trend that has surfaced revolves
around the idea of the 'mobile’ flag in which an individual displays their particular flag of
choice on their vehicle. These items are commonly referred to as car flags and are usually
manufactured from high strength polyester material and are attached to a vehicle via a
polypropylene pole and clip window attachment.

Swimming flags|edit]

Page 109



Open swimming area

} h‘
7N

Closed swimming area

In Australia, Canada, New Zealand, the Philippines, and the United Kingdom a pair of
red/yellow flags is used to mark the limits of the bathing area on a beach, usually guarded by
surf lifesavers. If the beach is closed, the poles of the flags are crossed. The flags are colored
with a red triangle and a yellow triangle making a rectangular flag, or a red rectangle over a
yellow rectangle. On many Australian beaches there is a slight variation with beach condition
signaling. A red flag signifies a closed beach (in the UK also other dangers), yellow signifies
strong current or difficult swimming conditions, and green represents a beach safe for general
swimming. In Ireland, a red and yellow flag indicates that it is safe to swim; a red flag that it
is unsafe; and no flag indicates that there are no lifeguards on duty. Blue flags may also be
used away from the yellow-red lifesaver area to designate a zone for surfboarding and other
small, non-motorised watercraft.

Reasons for closing the beach include:

dangerous rip
hurricane warning
no lifeguards in attendance

overpolluted water
sharks

tsunami

waves t0o strong

2 & & @ & & 9

A surf flag exists, divided into four quadrants. The top left and bottom right quadrants are
black, and the remaining area is white.

Signal flag "India" (a black circle on a yellow square) is frequently used to denote a
"blackball" zone where surfboards cannot be used but other water activities are permitted.

Railway flags|edit]

Page 110



Railways use a number of colored flags. When used as wayside signals they usunally use the
following meanings {exact meanings are set by the individual railroad company):

red = stop

yellow = proceed with care

green or white = proceed.

a flag of any color waved vigorously means stop

a blue flag on the side of a locomotive means that it should not be moved because
someone is working on it (or on the train attached to it). A blue flag on a track means
that nothing on that track should be moved. The flag can only be removed by the
person or group that placed if. In the railway dominated steel industry this principle of
"blue flag and tag" was extended to all operations at Bethlehem Steel, Lackawanna,
NY. If a man went inside a large machine or worked on an electrical circuit for
example, his blue flag and tag was sacrosanct.!™® The "Lock OQut/Tag Out" practice is
similar and now used in other industries to comply with safety regulations.

L] ® @ @&

At night, the flags are replaced with lanterns showing the same colors.
Flags displayed on the front of a moving locomotive are an acceptable replacement for
classification lights and usually have the following meanings (exact meanings are set by the
individual railroad company):

o white = extra (not on the timetable)

¢ green = another section following

» red = last section

Additionally, a railroad brakeman will typically carry a red flag to make his or her hand
signals more visible to the engineer. Railway signals are a development of railway flags.!

Flagpoles|edit]

"Flagpole” redirects here. For the magazine, see Flagpole Magazine.

Flagpole of modest size, with simple truck

Page 111



New Caledonia has two official flags, flown here in Nouméa, the capital city, on a single
flagpole with a crossbar.

Dwajasthambam (flagstaff) at Brihadeeswarar Temple, Thanjavur, Tamil Nadu, India,

A flagpole, flagmast, flagstaff, or staff can be a simple support made of wood or metal. If it is
taller than can be easily reached to raise the flag, a cord is used, looping around a pulley at
the top of the pole with the ends tied at the bottom. The flag 1s fixed to one lower end of the
cord, and is then raised by pulling on the other end. The cord is then tightened and tied to the
pole at the bottom. The pole is usually topped by a flat plate or ball called a "truck"
(originally meant to keep a wooden pole from splitting) or a finial in a more complex shape.
Very high flagpoles may require more complex support structures than a simple pole, such as

a guyed mast.

Dwajasthambam are flagstaffs commons at the entrances of South Indian Hindu temples."®

Page 112



Record heights|edit]

Since 2011, the tallest free-standing flagpole in the world has been the Dushanbe Flagpole in
Tajikistan,"™ with a height of 165 m (541 ft), beating the formerly record holding National
Flagpole in Azerbaijan (size: 162 m; 532 ft)'® and the North Korean flag at Kijdng-dong
(size: 160 m; 525 ft).

The tallest flagpole in the United Kingdom from 1959 until 2013 stood in Kew Gardens. It
was made from a Canadian Douglas-fir tree and was 68.5 m (225 £t) in height.2®

The current tallest flagpole in the United States (and the tallest containing an American flag)
is a 400 feet (120 m) pole completed near Memorial Day 2014 and custom-made with a large
11 feet (3.4 m) base in concrete by wind turbine manufacturer Broadwind Energy, which is
situated on the north side of the Acuity Insurance headquarters campus along Interstate 43 in
Sheboygan, Wisconsin and is visible from Cedar Grove. The pole will hold a 220-pound flag
for pleasant conditions and a thicker 350-pound flag for harsh weather.2? Acuity had made
three separate attempts in the 2000s at the tallest flagpole which were all removed due to
collapses or wind-swaying, following the example of a nearby Perkins location which had put
up a flag visible on their property from the W1 28 exit.

Design|[edit]

Flagpoles can be designed in one piece with a taper (typically a steel taper or a Greek entasis
taper), or be made from multiple pieces to make them able to expand. In the United States,
ANSI/NAAMM guide specification FP-1001-97 covers the engineering design of metal
flagpoles to ensure safety.

Hoisting the flag|edit]

Hoisting the flag is the act of raising the flag on the flagpole. Raising or lowering flags,
especially national flags, usually involves ceremonies and certain sets of rules, depending on
the country, and usually involve the performance of a national anthem.

A flag-raising squad is a group of people, usually troops, cadets, or students, that marches in
and brings the flags for the flag-hoisting ceremony. Flag-hoisting ceremonies involving flag-
raising squads can be simple or elaborate, involving large numbers of squads. Elaborate flag-
hoisting ceremonies are usually performed on national holidays.

Flags and communication|edit]

a3 Yy ¥
A a b=d &
(!--(t\-f-gv—irr-r‘ﬂﬁ
HY W h AR
Rasi |

Page 113



Semaphore signals for the letters of the English alphabet

Semaphore is a form of communication that utilizes flags. The signalling is performed by an
individual using two flags (or lighted wands), the positions of the flags indicating a symbol.
The person who holds the flags is known as the signalman. This form of communication is
primarily used by naval signallers. This technique of signalling was adopted in the early 19th
century and is still used in various forms today.

The colors of the flags can also be used to communicate. For example; a white flag means,
among other things, surrender or peace, a red flag can be used as a warning signal, and a
black flag can mean war, or determination to defeat enemies.

Orientation of a flag is also used for communication, though the practice is rarely used given
modern communication systems. Raising a flag upside-down was indicative that the raising
force controlled that particular area, but that it was in severe distregslrwteracdcd

Flapping|[edit]

Play media

Video of U.S. Flag Flapping

When blown by the wind, flags are subject to wave-like motions that grow in amplitude along
the length of the flag. This is sometimes ascribed to the flag pole giving vortex shedding
however flags that are held by lanyards also can be seen to flap.

Commercial Products|edit]

Flags have been widely used on commereial products, such as T-shirts,"* mugs,'* baseball
caps,* earrings, and flashcards™ ete.

See also[edit]

Lists and galleries of flags

Gallery of sovereign-state flags

List of flag names

Lists of flags
Timeline of national flags

Unofficial flags

Notable flag-related topics

Page 114



False flag

Flag Day

Flag desecration
Flag etiquetie
Flag patch

Flag semaphore
Flag terminology
Flag throwing

Pledge of Allegiance
Standard-bearer (also enumerates various types of standards, both flag types and

immobile ensigns)
Vexillology

Miscellaneous

Flags of the World, an Internet-based vexillological association and resource

Petrosomatoglyph Symbols and prehistory
Windsock

o Koinobori

References|edit]

a—y

L

17.

18.
19.
20.
21

22.
23,

24,
231

Jump up * Articles 90-94 of the UN Convention on the Law of the Sea

Jump up * National Flag -The official website of Denmark. An earlier use of the white cross on red is
attested by an armorial (Netherlands) of 1370-1386. In later monastic tradition, the Danneborg made its
fixst, miraculous appearance at the Battle of Lyndanisse on 15 June 1219.

Jump up * Rog.nmm.ac.uk

Jump up * "Largest flag flown".
Jump up 4 "Qatar breaks record for world's largest flag". BBC. December 17, 2013. Retrieved

December 17, 2013,

A Jump up to; 18 ¢4« "Flaggentypen". German Vexillological Society (Deutsche Gesellschaft fiir
Flaggenkunde ¢. V., DGF). Retrieved 20 February 2012.

Jump up * German Federal Ministry of the Interior: Hissflagge, accessed 20 February 2012

Jump up » German Federal Ministry of the Interior: Hochformatflagse, accessed 20 February 2012
Jump up * German Federal Ministry of the Interior: Auslegerflagge, accessed 20 February 2012

. Jump up » German Federal Ministry of the Interior: Hangeflagge, accessed 20 February 2012

. Jump up * German Federal Ministry of the Interior: Héingeflugge, accessed 20 February 2012

. Jump up » Why you should not use a flagas a symbol of language

. Jump up * W3C Internationalization Best Practices

. Jump up * Evropean Committee for Standardization, European Culturally Specific ICT Requirements
. Jump up » OSHRC zov

. Jump up * Calvert, J.B. (2004-07-25). "Early Railway Signals". University of Denver. Retrieved

2007-10-07.

Jump up » Hiltebeitel. Alf (1991). The Cult of Draupadi, Volume 2: On Hindu Ritual and the
Goddess, University of Chicago Press. ISBN 0226340473. pp. 91-92.

Jump up * "Wer baut den hoechsten Fahnenmast”. Asia Plus. September 9, 2008.

Jump up » "Flag of Azerbaijan". Telegraph.co.uk. July 3, 2008.

Jump up » "Kew Gardens Flagpole”. Kew.org.

Jump up * Weyandt, Janet (25 May 2014). "High-flying: Up in time for Memorial Day, Acuity flag is
warld's tallest". The Shebovgan Press. Retrieved 26 May 2014,

Jump up * "Cone Tapered vs. Venetian Entagis Tapered”. Lingo Flagpoles Inc. Archived from the
original on 2005-02-28.

Jump up ~ Ralph Lauren. Men's T-shirt with the flag of the U.S.

Jump up * Imperial College Union. Imperical College Union Flag Mug

Jump up * Buk Souvenirs. England Flag Baseball Cap

Page 115



26. Jump up * Carddia Flashcards. Flag collections

@ Wikimedia Commons has media related to Flags.

M8l  wikidata has a property, P63, for Flag (sce uses)

» Australian Botany pages

« William G. Crampton; The World of Flags; Rand McNally;

1994).

Samuel Finley Breese Morse

» Ultimate Pocket Flags of the Wo

American edition, hardcover, 1996).

State-related

hide

a
e les ]

Lists of flags

« Master list
« Reference list

Arab states

Civil flag

Country

Date of Adoption
Formerly independent
Heads of state
Historical flags

State flag

State flags and ensigns
Sovereign

Special and fictional

Unrecognized

ISBN 0-528-83720-6 (hardcover,

rid; Dorling Kindersley; 1ISBN 0-7894-2085-6; (1st

« Armed Forces

Mobile military

Page 116

Ammy & Ground Forces



Other entities

By design

Mobile civilian

Air Forces

Air Forces Roundels

Air Forces Fin Flashes
Border & Coast Guard Forces
Maritime

Ministry of Defense
Naval Ensigns
Naval Jack

Police Flag

Civil air

Civil and Merchant Navy
Pilot boat flags and ensigns
Yacht flags and ensigns

« Active autonomist and secessionist movements

« Cities

+ Country subdivisions

e Cultural

o Dependent territories

¢ Ethnic

« Gay pride and Lesbian Bisexunal Transgender flags

« Micronations

s Political
e Religious
By elements

Animals
Astronomical
Bicolor
Borders
British ensigns
Buildings
Canton

Circles

Page 117



« Color
o by number

o by combination
« Crescenis

» Crosses (Nordic)

« Headgear

o Inscriptions
» Nautical

» Plants

e Solids

« Stars

« Triangles

o Tribands

e Two-sided
« Weapons

s Proportions

By shape

« Argentina

e Armenia

e Australia

o Austria

+ Azerbaijan

« Bahamas

« Bangladesh
By nations » Barbados

« Belarus

» Belgium

+ Bosnia & Herzegovina

» Brazil

» Cambodia
e Canada
s Chile

Page 118




China
o Hong Kong
o Macau
o Taiwan
Colombia
Costa Rica

Dominican Republic
Egypt

Estonia

Finland

France

o regions

o South Korea
Latvia
Lithuania
Luxembourg
Macedonia

Malaysia
Mexico

Page 119



Malta
Moldova
Morocco
Montenegro
Netherlands
New Zealand
Norwa
Pakistan
Peru
Philippines
Poland

o naval and maritime
o voivodeships

Portugal
Rhodesia

Romania
Russia
o federal subjects
o Russian Navy
Serbia
o Kosovo
Singapore
South Africa
Soviet Union
o republics
o Soviet Navy
Spain
Sri Lanka
Sweden
Switzerland
Tajikistan
Thailand
Ukraine
United Kingdom

o England
o Northern Irelund

o Scatland

Page 120



o Wales
o Falkland Islands
o Gibraltar
s United States
o states
o Puerto Rico
o CS4
» Uzbekistan
+ Vatican City
« Vietnam

o Yugoslavia
o Zimbabwe

o Africa
e Antarctica
» Asia
By continent Europe
e North America
e Oceania

» South America

Names in italics indicate non-sovereign (dependent) territories, disputed states and/or
former countries.

Authority contrel | Dk 00563007

<img src="//en.wikipedia.org/wiki/ Speciﬂzagi;ﬁ;{ﬁ%'fagfggt&mﬁﬁgél'x‘i‘;‘ alt="" title=""

width="1" height="1" style="border: none; position: absolute;" />
Retrieved from "https://en.wikipedia.org/w/index. php?title=Flag&oldid=677764667"
Categories:

e Fla gs
s National symbols

+« Vexillology

Page 121



Page 122



Agenda Item 5b

PLANNING CONSULTATION

To: Economic Development Section
From: Development Management Date: 19th May 2015
Contact:  Stuart Herkes & 01835 825039 Ref: 15/00504/FUL

PLANNING CONSULTATION
Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. | shall be glad to have
your reply not later than 9th June 2015, If further time will be required for a reply please let me
know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 9th June 2015, it will be
assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application.
Name of Applicant: Rural Renaissance Ltd

Agent: Camerons Ltd

Nature of Proposal: External alterations and erection of 4 No flagpoles
Site: Office West Grove Waverley Road Melrose Scottish Borders TD6 9SL

OBSERVATIONS OF: Economic Development Section

CONSULTATION REPLY

The Economic Development section has no objections and supports the improvements
proposed for the frontage of this building.

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.qov.uk

Page 123



Good Morning
Application Ref 15/00504/FUL

Rural Renaissance
Office West Grove
Waverley Road
Melrose

TD6 9SL

External alterations and erection of 4 No flagpoles
Melrose & District Community Council support the external changes and improvements
proposed for this building

But have a concern regarding the flagpoles in this primarily residential area may be out
of place

Regards
Robin Chisholm for Melrose & District Community Council

Page 124



REGULATORY Scottish
SERVICES Borders

COUNCII

To: Development Management Service Date: 8" June 2015
FAO Stuart Herkes

From: Roads Planning Service
Contact: Ashley Hogg Ext: 5396 Ref: 15/00504/FUL

Subject: External alterations and erection of 4 No flagpoles
Office West Grove Waverly Road Melrose

| am content that the poles do not interfere with visibility sightlines for drivers exiting the
site.

No roads objections.

JAF

Page 125



From: Knight, Jim On Behalf Of Landscape Consultations
Sent: 15 July 2015 14:25

To: Herkes, Stuart

Subject: RE: SBC 15/00504/FUL Office West Grove

Stuart,

With apologies for the late response, there is no objection to this application. The only landscape
comment is that 4 flagpoles plus a lamp post produces a degree of visual clutter.

Regards Jim

Page 126



Agenda Item 5c

Application Comments for 15/00504/FUL

Application Summary

Application Number: 15/00504/FUL

Address: Office West Grove Waverley Road Melrose Scottish Borders TD6 9SL
Proposal: External alterations and erection of 4 No flagpoles

Case Officer: Stuart Herkes

Customer Details
Name: Mr Rodger Johnston
Address: 14 High Cross Avenue, Melrose, Melrose, Scottish Borders TD6 9SQ

Comment Details
Commenter Type: Member of Public
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:

- Road safety
Comment:The siting of the 4 flagpoles may restrict oncoming drivers vision, as | leave my
driveway to get on to the road. Turning right for Galashiels can be difficult due to the fast speed of
many cars heading in to Melrose, and the alignment of tha 4 flagpoles could present a blind spot.
| also feel, that the flags themselves would be unsightly for the town and a distraction at a very
busy and fast moving junction.

Page 127



Application Comments for 15/00504/FUL

Application Summary

Application Number: 15/00504/FUL

Address: Office West Grove Waverley Road Melrose Scottish Borders TD6 9SL
Proposal: External alterations and erection of 4 No flagpoles

Case Officer: Stuart Herkes

Customer Details
Name: Mr Alan Young
Address: Tweedsyde Tweedmount Road, Melrose, Scottish Borders TD6 9ST

Comment Details
Commenter Type: Member of Public
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:

- Detrimental to Residential Amenity

- Height of .....

- Road safety
Comment:| feel it necessary to comment on this application, the proposed alterations to the
building are very welcomed. The flagpoles are however out of context for this residential area,
their positioning will distract drivers and pedestrians at this very busy junction. Their height would
also appear excessive.

Sould this number of flagpoles be required, necessary angular poles attach at various heights to
the face of the building could facilitate this in a far more asthecticly pleasing nature.

Page 128



Application Comments for 15/00504/FUL

Application Summary

Application Number: 15/00504/FUL

Address: Office West Grove Waverley Road Melrose Scottish Borders TD6 9SL
Proposal: External alterations and erection of 4 No flagpoles

Case Officer: Stuart Herkes

Customer Details
Name: Mr Robin Purdie
Address: 16 High Cross Avenue, Melrose, Melrose, Scottish Borders TD6 9SQ

Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:
- Detrimental to Residential Amenity
- Height of .....
- Road safety
Comment:| have no objection to the development of the building per se, however i do object to the
following:

1) The flagpoles - these will further hinder the line of sight when exiting the driveway of numbers
14 and 16 High Cross Avenue. The view is already restricted enough and vehicles come round
that corner at a ridiculous speed. | also feel that the poles will look completely out of place in this
particular area and are far from in-keeping. If there are to be flags then a compromise would be to
attach them to the building.

2) The colour - once again | have no issues with the building being developed but the light cream
colour is more inkeeping with a scheme of modern properties rather than the existing buildings in
this area, particularly given that this building is on the main road in/out of Melrose, and the
surrounding buildings are much darker and traditional in colour.

Page 129



Page 130



Agenda Item 5d

List of Policies

Local Review Reference: 15/00022/RFEF

Planning Application Reference: 15/00504/FUL

Development Proposal: External alterations and erection of 4no flagpoles
Location: Office West Grove, Waverley Road, Melrose

Applicant: Rural Renaissance Ltd

SESPLan 2013:

None applicable

Consolidated Scottish Borders Local Pan 2011

POLICY G1 - QUALITY STANDARDS FOR NEW DEVELOPMENT

All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with
sustainability principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to
integrate with its landscape surroundings. The standards which will apply to all
development are that:

1. It is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area,
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,

2. it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,

3. it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the

amenity or biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation
or replacements,

4. it creates developments with a sense of place, designed in sympathy with
Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need not exclude appropriate
contemporary and/or innovative design,

5. in terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer
has demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise
the efficient use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable
energy and resources and the incorporation of sustainable construction
techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance referred to
in Appendix D,

6. it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural
or screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings
and the wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some
cases agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are
undertaken at an early stage of development and that appropriate
arrangements are put in place for long term landscape/open space
maintenance,

7. it provides open space that wherever possible, links to existing open spaces
and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation
of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a
developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may
be appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,

8. it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the
development that will help integration with its surroundings,
9. it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport

connections and provision for bus laybys, and new paths and cycleways,
linking where possible to the existing path network; Green Travel Plans will

Page 131



10.

11.
12.

13.

14.
15.

be encouraged to support more sustainable travel patterns,

it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems where appropriate and
their after-care and maintenance,

it provides for recycling, re-using and composting waste where appropriate,
it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings
and, where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,
it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which
complement the highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an
extension or alteration, the existing building,

it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,

it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in
accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.

Developers may be required to provide design statements, design briefs or
landscape plans as appropriate.

POLICY G7 — INFILL DEVELOPMENT

Within Development Boundaries, as shown on Proposals Maps, development on
non-allocated, infill or windfall, sites, including the re-use of buildings, will be
approved if:

1.

in the case of a gap site, it can be justified under Policies BE6 (Protection of
Open Space), Policy NE3 (Local Biodiversity) and Policy Inf11 (Developments
that Generate Travel Demand);

in the case of employment land the proposed new use can be justified under
Policy ED1 to prevent the loss of employment land with prospects of future use;

in the case of garden ground or backland sites, it can be justified under Policy H2
to safeguard the amenity of residential areas;

In all cases, the following criteria will apply to proposed infill development:-

i)
i)
ii)

Vi)

All

where relevant, it does not conflict with the established land use of the area; and
it does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area; and
the individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the
social and economic infrastructure and it does not lead to over-development or
‘town and village cramming’; and

it respects the scale, form, design, materials and density of its surroundings; and

adequate access and servicing can be achieved, particularly taking account of
water and drainage and schools capacity; and

it does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to adjoining
properties as a result of overshadowing or overlooking.

applications will be considered against the Council’s Supplementary Planning

Guidance on Placemaking and Design.

Page 132



POLICY H2 — PROTECTION OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or
proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and
character of these areas, any developments will be assessed against:

1. The principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space
that would be lost; and
2. The details of the development itself particularly in terms of:

(i) the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a
residential area,

(i) the impact of the proposed development on the existing and
surrounding properties particularly in terms of overlooking and loss of
privacy. These considerations apply especially in relation to garden
ground or ‘backland’ development,

(iii) the generation of traffic or noise,

(iv) the level of visual impact.

POLICY BE4 — CONSERVATION AREAS

1. Development within or adjacent to a Conservation Area that would have an
unacceptable adverse impact on its character and appearance will be
refused.

2. All new development must be located and designed to preserve or enhance
the special architectural or historic character of the Conservation Area. This
should accord with the scale, proportions, alignment, density, materials, and
boundary treatment of nearby buildings, open spaces, vistas, gardens and
landscapes.

3. Conservation Area consent, which is required for the demolition of an unlisted
building within a Conservation Area, will only be considered in the context of
appropriate proposals for redevelopment and will only be permitted where:

i) the building is incapable of reasonably beneficial use by virtue of its
location, physical form or state of disrepair, and

i) the structural condition of the building is such that it cannot be
adapted to accommodate alterations or extensions without material
loss to its character, and

iii) the proposal will preserve or enhance the Conservation area, either
individually or as part of the townscape.

In cases i) to iii) above, demolition will not be permitted to proceed until

acceptable alternative treatment of the site has been approved and a contract

for the replacement building or for an alternative means of treating the

cleared site has been agreed.

4. Full consideration will be given to the guidance given in the Scottish Historic
Environment Policy (SHEP) in the assessment of any application relating to
development within a Conservation Area.

5. The Council may require applications for full, as opposed to outline, consent.
In instances where outline applications are submitted, the Council will require
a ‘Design Statement’ to be submitted at the same time, which should explain
and illustrate the design principles and design concepts of the proposals.
Design Statements will also be required for any applications for major
alterations or extensions, or for demolition and replacement.

Page 133



Other Material Considerations
Scottish Planning Policy
Scottish Borders Proposed Local Development Plan 2013

Page 134



	Agenda
	4a Notice of Review and accompanying papers including:
	4b Papers referred to in officer's report
	4c List of policies
	5a Notice of Review and accompanying papers including:
	5b Consultations
	5c Objections
	5d List of Policies

